
1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

1 7  

18 

19 

2 0  

2 1  

22  

23 

24 

2 5  

4 0  

BEFORE THE 
FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

DOCKET NO. 041272-E1 
En the Matter of: 

?ETITION FOR APPROVAL OF STORM 
ZOST RECOVERY CLAUSE FOR RECOVERY 
IF EXTRAORDINARY EXPENDITURES 
3ELATED TO HURRICANES CHARLEY, 
FRANCES, JEANNE, AND IVAN, BY 
PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA, INC. 

/ 

ELECTRONIC VERSIONS OF THIS TRANSCRIPT ARE 
A CONVENIENCE COPY ONLY AND ARE NOT 

THE OFFICIAL TRANSCRIPT OF THE HEARING, 
THE 

PROCEEDINGS : 

BEFORE : 

DATE : 

PLACE : 

REPORTED BY: 

APPEARANCES : 

PDF VERSION INCLUDES PREFILED TESTIMONY. 

VOLUME 2 

Pages 40 through 199 

HEARING 

CHAIRMAN BRAULIO L. BAEZ 
COMMISSIONER J. TERRY DEASON 
COMMISSIONER RUDOLPH "RUDY" BRADLEY 
COMMISSIONER CHARLES M. DAVIDSON 
COMMISSIONER LISA POLAK EDGAR 

Wednesday, March 30, 2 0 0 5  

Betty Easley Conference Center 

4075 Esplanade Way 
Tallahassee, Florida 

Room 148 

JANE FAUROT, RPR 
Chief, Office of Hearing Reporter Services 
FPSC Division of Commission Clerk and 
Administrative Services 

(850) 413-6732 

(As heretofore noted.) 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION [I 3 I 4 4 fikF31 t 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

41 

I N D E X  

PAGE NO. 

3pening Statement by Mr. McWhirter 

Opening Statement by Mr. Wright 

Opening Statement by Mr. Twomey 

WITNESSES 

NAME : 

JEFF LYASH 

Direct Examination by Mr. Walls 
Prefiled Direct Testimony Inserted 
Cross Examination by Ms. Christensen 
Cross Examination by Mr. McWhirter 
Cross Examination by Mr. Twomey 
Redirect Examination by Mr. Walls 

DAVID McDONALD 

Direct Examination by Mr. Walls 
Prefiled Direct Testimony Inserted 
Cross Examination by Ms. Christensen 
Cross Examination by Mr. McWhirter 
Cross Examination by Mr. Twomey 
Cross Examination by Ms. Rodan 
Redirect Examination by Mr. Walls 

SARAH S. ROGERS 

Direct Examination by Mr. Walls 
Prefiled Direct Testimony Inserted 
Cross Examination by Ms. Christensen 
Cross Examination by Mr. McWhirter 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

43 

54 

55 

PAGE NO. 

62 
63A 
81 
91 
97 
103 

108 
110 
141 
146 
149 
152 
155 

158 
160 
186 
192 



1 

2 

3 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

NUMBER : 

7 & 8  

9 t h r u  16 

42 

EXHIBITS 

ID ADMTD - 

107 

157 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

2 0  

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

43  

P R O C E E D I N G S  

(Transcript follows in sequence from Volume 1:) 

CHAIRMAN BAEZ: Mr. McWhirter. 

MR. McWHIRTER: May it please the Commission. My 

name is John McWhirter and I'm here representing an industrial 

and large commercial consumer group. There was a Harvard 

professor, sort of a philosopher by the name of 

John Dos Passos, and he opined one time that you cannot - -  if 

you ignore history, you are doomed to repeat it. And I think 

in this case it is important to put the case into perspective 

to look at three moments in the history of the electric utility 

industry. 

The first moment is the time period a little more 

than 100 years ago, and a young man came to the United States 

2s a clerk for Thomas Edison. His name was Samuel Insull. 

Samuel Insull grew to be the father of the modern utility 

industry, and he came up with ideas that are still with us 

zoday. He came as Edison's clerk, and he watched how Edison 

lid business. And while he was with Edison he learned three 

zhings. The first thing he learned was the importance of 

government protection for a utility. 

2s it came into play then with the first electric utility in 

rlmerica was in New York City. It served Wall Street. And the 

nunicipal authorities of New York City took out the gas company 

2nd allowed electric lighting to take its place. 

And government protection 
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The second thing he learned under government 

?rotection was that you can establish a monopoly with 

government protection. He was the one that coined the phrase 

"natural monopoly,Il and since then around the country electric 

itilities have gotten franchises. 

The third thing he learned was the power of high 

Einance. When J.P. Morgan and the Wall Street financier forced 

3dison out of the business and they took over all the electric 

industry on the east coast of the United States, Samuel Insull, 

aho had ground to be the president of Edison General Electric, 

aas fired. Edison General Electric manufactured electrical 

?arts. And so he left with the knowledge that he had in his 

nind and he went to Chicago. And he took the money that he had 

2arned under Edison and bought a small utility known as 

'ommonwealth Edison. And under that he nurtured government 

?rivate utility partnerships and got a franchise in Chicago, 

m d  then he developed a program of public relations, and he got 

311 the utilities to spend a lot of time explaining to the 

?ublic the value of the public utilities industry and what it 

=an do for people. And he was able to lure investors into his 

itility company through this advertising that he used and got 

311 the other utilities together and they formed a national 

Slectric association, which today is called the Edison Electric 

Institute, and they promote electric companies. They would go 

xound to schools in the 2 0 ' s  when Insull was in power and had 
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songs that they had the children sing, and they sent the 

electric company representatives out to these schools. And 

public relations was the second big thing. 

But the most important thing he established in his 

leadership of the electric industry was the public utility 

holding company. 

15 percent of the entire electric industry in the United 

States. He owned over 100 utilities. And ironically he owned 

a North Carolina utility which in turn owned the predecessor of 

Progress Energy, Florida Power Corporation. And all was going 

well - 

And ironically he came up controlling about 

Samuel Insull was a lord of the manor. He was one of 

the most respected people in the United States. He founded the 

Zhicago Opera. But then something went wrong, and the economy 

dent bad, and Insull's company went bankrupt. And when 

Insull's company went bankrupt, he, as a debtor, and knowing 

the business was appointed as one of the trustees in 

bankruptcy. His co-trustee was an accountant in Chicago named 

4rthur Anderson, who learned from Samuel Insull. The other 

trustee was a judge's son-in-law. The bankruptcy court and the 

€ederal government investigated the Insull holding company 

interprises and they found that was all was not right. 

dound up that Insull was charged with mail fraud, in that he 

2ad encouraged investors to come to his company and bondholders 

LO lend money to his company through alleged mail fraud. He 

And it 
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was charged with embezzlement as a result of the transactions 

with the affiliates of those companies. He was charged with 

violating the Bankruptcy Act. And one of Insull's protegee's 

who had been formerly an Illinois Public Service Commissioner, 

and had been elected to the United States Senate, was so 

embarrassed by his relationships with Insull that he was thrown 

out of the United States. Insull left the country and was 

brought back in chains. 

And the question arises was he a pariah or was he a 

great American hero. I am not going to answer that question 

for you, but I will tell you what happened as a result of the 

failure of the Insull enterprise. It effects us today. The 

Federal Power Commission was created to take care of interstate 

utilities. The Securities and Exchange Act was passed in 1932 

to protect investors in utilities and other companies. The 

public utility holding company was passed in order to break up 

interstate holding companies, or to require them to be 

registered with the Securities Commission. 

The president of Florida Power at that time said that 

was the greatest thing that had ever happened to his utility. 

And most remarkably interesting for today's operation is the 

uniform system of accounts was established because they found 

the Insull accounting system, which ignored depreciation and 

had other strange quirks in it really didn't work, and as a 

result of it we come now today with generally accepted 
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accounting practices and the Financial Accounting Standards 

Board. 

Now, that happened in the early ' 3 0 s .  I want you now 

to fast forward 5 0  years to the early  OS, and what is going 

on in Florida at that time. In Florida at that time the public 

utility holding company was reestablished. We now have public 

utility holding companies in Florida with many affiliates. A 

little bit later a North Carolina utility once again merged 

with Florida Progress, a Florida utility. Public utilities in 

Florida now have over 100 lobbyists in the legislature. And 

accounting, even with the Financial Accounting Standards Board, 

has risen to a fine art. 

The next thing that has happened was the utilities 

had a great windfall in 1 9 9 3 ,  and that great windfall was 

Hurricane Andrew of all things. Now, most of the damage to 

utilities was covered by insurance, so there was no immediate 

impact on customers or on the utilities themselves. But the 

next time that utilities went out for insurance, they found 

that the insurance rates had gone up about 900 percent in some 

instances, and the deductibles had gone up 1,500 percent, and 

so there was concern about that. 

Now, to understand the insurance industry, what 

happens with insurance is you reduce cost to people by 

spreading the risk, and you spread the risk over the entire 

United States in most cases. And since a casualty is only 
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going to happen in one place, small premiums collected from a 

lot of places will cover that casualty without hurting anybody 

too much. 

The insurance companies turned Hurricane Andrew, like 

they do many other things, from lemons to lemonade. And they 

came to this Commission at that time - -  and at that time with 

their public utility holding companies and so forth, all of 

them had earnings that were bumping into or exceeding the top 

of the authorized rates of return. What they did was they said 

we can't get reasonably priced insurance anymore. We would 

like you to approve us self-insuring because insurance is so 

costly. And the Commission said, well, we would like - -  that 

makes some sense under the circumstances. We would like you to 

conduct some studies and come back to us and tell us what you 

want to do about it, and what should be done, and the main 

thing we want you to tell us is what should we be prepared for 

in storm damage. 

Now, this was a real boon to the utilities because 

now they have used a misnomer. Self-insurance is not 

self-insurance, it is customer insurance. So the customers of 

each of the utilities is now the insurance company or the 

zustomers en masse. We don't have the diversity of the whole 

Jnited States customers paying part of the premium of the 

insurance, you have only the customers in one service area. 

3ut that is still fairly diverse. But the cost, of course, is 
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going to be substantially higher. 

The beauty for the utilities in 1993 through 1995 

under the Hurricane Andrew windfall was instead of paying the 

insurance premium that was already in their base rates to an 

insurance company, they could keep the money. Instead of 

suffering deductibles, they could come up with a structure that 

without deductibles the customers would pay the entire cost. 

And then in the studies if you look at them, they did 

another thing that was absolutely fascinating. They said we 

can get double recovery because our entire storm costs are 

going to be recovered and in addition to this, we can keep the 

money that was normally budgeted for operating costs and it 

will cause our earnings to go up. And as an added icing on the 

cake, since we are presently suffering earnings bumping at the 

top of the authorized return, what we can do is create this 

storm reserve which will create a liability and it will look 

like our earnings and we can take revenue we are receiving from 

the customers and we can offset that with a liability and our 

earnings will go down. 

And these companies came in with the studies which 

are being relied on in this case. We now fast forward to the 

year 2 0 0 4 .  If they can get the studies in place with 

accounting systems developed that allow them to recover 100 

percent of their cost plus a windfall profit in the year of the 

storm, the greatest thing that can happen is a big storm. 
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Well, in 2004 we had the big storm. And what has happened in 

this situation, the way the utilities have done their 

accounting, in 2004 they are getting windfall profits on their 

earnings that it is too late to do anything about. In addition 

to that, if they get the relief they seek in this case, they 

will recover 100 percent of their storm damage. 

We have a three-pronged attack. This is only one 

small part of the overall attack by Florida utilities, and this 

first one to be heard and consequently it is the most important 

case, but there is a bill in the legislature to have a 

legislative imposed increase to have the customers pick up 

storm damages. But there isn't any definition in that bill 

3bout - -  they have defined storm damage the way they did it in 

their studies, so they preempt the Commission from doing 

mything special about it in my opinion. 

The second thing they don't deal with is the fact 

chat there is going to be incomes tax on the money that is 

Zollected under the securitization bill, and they haven't told 

1s how that is going to be handled. But that is another case. 

rhe other approach they are taking, both Florida Progress and 

?lorida Power and Light have come in with base rate cases so 

:hey can recover the storm damage either through their 

Securitization bill, they can recover the storm damage in this 

Zase, or they can recover the storm damage in the base rate 

Zases. So all three of these things are going on 
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;imultaneously. 

One problem that Florida Progress had in 2004 was 

;hat they were frustrated by an agreement they had earned into. 

It said that your base rates must fall to 10 percent rather 

zhan rising to an exponential amount when this big storm comes 

2long. So they were frustrated by this agreement, but that 

2greement related to base rates. So wa-la, what we do then is 

zreate a new cost-recovery mechanism and say that the 

stipulation doesn't apply to cost-recovery mechanisms designed 

zo cover unusual operating and extraordinary operating costs, 

m d  so we don't have been to abide by what we agreed to abide 

3Y 

I will bring this to a short conclusion. Now that 

IOU know the history 100 years ago, how Samuel Insull developed 

zhe modern utility industry, what happened in '93, how 

3urricane Andrew set us up for the big windfall later, and 2004 

ahen the big windfall occurred, I would like you to think of 

,he intervenor people at this end of the table a$ insurance 

zlaims agents and we are here as representatives of the 

insurers, who are your consumers of Florida Progress. And we 

sant you to do right by those consumers, if you will. And what 

ae want you to do is where the utility is asking you to recover 

their entire storm costs, however they identify it, plus let 

them keep their ordinary and maintenance expenses that were 

ised to collect to do storm work by employees that were doing 
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storm work, if I were an insurance claims agent, I would say 

wait a minute, that is double recovery. You are already 

recovering the salaries of these people through base rates and 

now you are seeking to recover those salaries again through the 

storm damage. That is insurance fraud. So we are going to ask 

you to look to see if what Florida Progress is asking is not 

really tantamount to insurance fraud on the customer insurers. 

Secondly, insurance companies, as my predecessors 

have talked about, have a deductible portion. They say in 

Drder to prevent insureds from doing wrong, we want you to 

share in the cost. And, of course, that has presented a real 

?roblem for Florida consumers because insurance companies have 

3pplied these deductibles and when there are four storms they 

2pplied them four times. 

Erom the storm damage if they were in that area. All customers 

5 in Florida are going to hurt a lot from increased insurance 

gremiums. 

insurance is going to get all of his money back. FEMA, the 

nunicipal utilities say the customers are going to get 90 to 95 

percent of their storm damage recovered through FEMA, but 

Florida Progress wants you to give them 100 percent of their 

earnings plus allow their return on equity in 2004 because they 

2re eliminating some major ordinary and necessary operating 

zxpenses and reclassifying that as insurance. 

ignore the fact that their earnings will now soar to over 14 

And customers are already hurting 

No customer, no customer in Florida that was hurt by 

They want you to 
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percent on equity. And when the equity component in your 

company is substantially more than half, that is a big number. 

The third thing we want you to do as your insurance 

agents, we would like - -  as your insurance claim agent, we 

would like you to look at the insurance policy, and in this 

instance we have an agreement that you look at. And Mr. 

McGlothlin has told you about that agreement, and I won't go 

into it in any more detail than that, but we think Florida 

Progress is bound by it. 

And, finally, we want to tell you that we are proud 

of the way that Florida Progress handled the storm damage, the 

way they worked with citizens. It helped their public 

relations. They showed the kind of attitude we would expect on 

the part of our utility, and you should be proud of them, and I 

don't want to do anything here today to cast aspersions upon 

that prompt and good reaction. All we ask you to do, all we 

ask you to do is fairly share the cost between the utility and 

its customer insurers. And because, as Mr. Sasso told you, 

defining the incremental cost is difficult, and it is going to 

require a lot of problems, we give you some alternatives and we 

give you a simplified method for doing it. And we hope that 

you will recognize the importance of having the utility share a 

little bit in the hurricane cost with its customers who are 

caught by the burden of their own hurricane losses and by the 

burden of their increased insurance premiums already, and now 
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.et them get some relief at least from their insurance company 

:eturn than paying the insurance company a windfall profit. 

Thank you for your time. 

CHAIRMAN BAEZ: Thank you, Mr. McWhirter. 

Mr. Wright. 

MR. WRIGHT: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Like you and 

4r. Sasso, I too am working a cold. And the good news is my 

ipening statement will be the briefest yet. 

This is about costs, proper costs and proper risk 

sharing, and the Commission's decisions in that regard. We 

2gree with Mr. McLean's earlier comment that any proprietor, 

:he owners of any company or firm in Florida would and should 

share in the risks and costs associated with natural events 

such as hurricanes. Here, in the regulatory context, the 

Clommission has in our view of the world an overarching, 

werriding statutory mandate to ensure that the totality of 

utilities rates, Progress' this week, Power and Light's in 

three weeks from now, that the totality of utilities rates are 

fair, just, and reasonable. We fully support this principle 

and we fully support that outcome. 

However, approving Progress' request would result in 

total rates that are too high. That are so high as to be 

unfair, unjust, and unreasonable. The surcharges would, as 

others have observed, enable Progress to insulate excessive 

profits via the use of the proposed surcharges. They would, as 
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4r. McGlothlin and Mr. McWhirter have said, and with which we 

3gree impose all risks upon their customers. As Mr. McWhirter 

?ointed out, they would make - -  Progress would make us their 

insurers. Accordingly, the Commission should limit the 

surcharges that it approves, if any, to the amount necessary to 

9rovide Progress Energy with the opportunity to earn a fair, 

just, and reasonable rate of return on equity, 10 percent, 

ahich they agreed to in the 2002 stipulation for 2004 and 2005. 

de agree with the comments of Mr. McGlothlin and Mr. McWhirter, 

2nd thank you. 

CHAIRMAN BAEZ: Mr. Twomey. 

MR. TWOMEY: Yes, sir, Mr. Chairman. Thank you, 

Commissioners. Mike Twomey. 

First, I want to say, Commissioners, that I would 

encourage you to listen to the positions given to you on the 

issues by the consumer representatives before you today. 

Public Counsel by law represents all of the utilities customers 

in these cases. FIPUG represents industrial and other large 

users. The Florida Retail Federation represents or has over 

10,000 members, businesses reportedly. I am representing Bud 

Hanson, who many of you know, Sugarmill Woods, who has several 

thousand community members, and the AARP, a goodly number of 

its 2.7 million members in Florida which are served by 

Progress. 

Each of us here speaking to you today has urged that, 
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me, you should either give no surcharge, or if you do, that 

:he surcharge should reflect a sharing of the cost of recovery 

uith the company and not the cost to be borne completely 100 

?ercent by the utility's customers. 

I say that because it is in contrast to some of the 

testimony you heard in your multi-city customer service 

iearings where you had customers tell you that they wanted to 

nave their rates increased and they wanted to bear 100 percent 

Df the cost of the recovery of this utility's systems. I want 

to urge to you and suggest to you that that testimony in the 

Eace of what you are hearing from the representatives of 

zonsumers here today is simply not credible. No customers can 

iredibly want to pay all of these costs 100 percent, and you 

shouldn't find that they should have to. 

Now, Mr. Sasso talked as if - -  or seemed to talk as 

if there was in reality a storm cost-recovery clause. Now, of 

zourse, there is no such thing. There is no such animal. And 

dithout a clause, a recovery clause like your fuel charge 

-lause, and environmental and so forth, there is no history in 

this Commission that I am aware of in my 25 years of practice 

that the Commission has set rates in order to go back and 

capture for a utility past expenditures. That is in this case 

nonies they spent for the recovery of their hurricane costs in 

2004 to set prospective rates to go back and get past 

2xpenditures. I am not aware of an instance where that has 
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been done outside of a clause that in advance has foreseen such 

a recovery clause. I'm going back. 

You all know that ratemaking is prospective, that is 

you set rates that are designed in the future to recover costs 

that are estimated, projected, or known. So, in the orders 

that the Commission has rendered since 1993, the orders that I 

am aware of on storm cost recovery are consistent with that 

view. That is there is not a 1 0 0  percent indemnification 

described in any of those orders as I read them. In fact, I 

don't recall in those orders that the Commission gave any rate 

increases at all. Typically what has happened, and by reading 

those orders you will see that the Commission has considered 

allowing a utility to increase its accrual if its earnings 

allowed it, but didn't give surcharges to immediately bring the 

fund back into a positive balance. In the case of Gulf Power, 

the fund was allowed, the storm fund was allowed to go negative 

for awhile. So you have not - -  in the past, your precedence is 

not to go back and give a surcharge as is being requested by 

this company now. 

Consequently, you should in our opinion not grant a 

surcharge and allow this utility to amortize its cost over five 

years. In addition to that, you could consider increasing the 

sccrual in the company's base rate case which is yet to be 

filed, that will be filed soon presumably, and which will be 

decided before the year is out. Increase the accrual if the 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



8 

9 

10 

11 

1 2  

13 

14 

1 5  

16 

17 

1 8  

1 9  

2 0  

2 1  

22 

23 

24 

2 5  

5 8  

projections show that it is necessary on a going-forward basis. 

If you do decide to grant a surcharge, you should do 

two things. First, as pointed out by the previous speakers, 

you need to eliminate the double counting or double-dipping. 

The company has overreached extensively especially in terms of 

its personnel costs trying to charge the regular eight-hour da: 

of a worker and not just the overtime. That is egregious in my 

view. It is overreaching. The burden of proof for any expense 

in any case is on the utility. You all should hold them to 

task and you should eliminate each and every dollar which has 

been alleged and shown that they have overreached by trying to 

have a double recovery by designating what would otherwise be 

an annual expense, a normal O&M expense as storm recovery so 

they get a double recovery there. 

Secondly, and more importantly as pointed out by Mr. 

McGlothlin, you need to embrace the sharing concept. If you 

are going to make the customers pay for any of these costs at 

a l l  through a surcharge, you need to make the company pay its 

share, as well. And I will use one utility's name to emphasize 

this fact. I would encourage you to remember because you just 

recently approved it, Gulf Power. Gulf Power's workers, I 

assume, worked just as valiantly as Progress Energy's did in 

extreme weather and at their peril to fix their system for the 

betterment of their customers. And it is not just for the 

betterment of the customers, of course. Mr. Sasso would have 
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you believe, apparently, that the only people that benefitted 

by the repair of Progress Energy's system were the system's 

customers. 

Now, for example, supermarkets are in the business of 

selling food. Those people that suffered storm damages got out 

and fixed their stores so they could start selling groceries 

again. Progress Energy, like the other utilities in this 

state, are in the business - -  is in the business of selling 

electricity. It had to fix its own system in order to get back 

in business. Progress should be required to share on about the 

same order through your vote as Gulf Power did through its 

stipulation with the office of Public Counsel and with FIPUG, 

which stipulation you approved which had them share roughly on 

the order of about 50 percent of the costs. In the end you 

should find about the same thing. 

To suggest that this utility, Progress Energy, which 

reported earnings to the SEC and its shareholders last year of 

something in excess of 1 3 . 5  percent on equity as I recall, to 

require its customers to pay 100 percent of these costs and let 

the shareholders get a free ride is in my view unconscionable. 

You should not do it, Commissioners. 

Shareholders purchase stock in this company. They 

know that it has assets in the state of Florida, they have to 

know given our history that the state gets hit with some 

frequency with hurricanes. As you were told earlier, as you 
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cnow from your cost of capital testimony, there is a business 

risk associated with this, and the utilities are paid for it in 

the equity award that you approve. 

Requiring the utility to go down to 10 percent, we 

2re not talking about 2 percent, we are not talking about 3 

percent, we are not looking at businesses that were wiped out, 

3r people that lost everything, or major investments through 

fleductibles and so forth. Ten percent is still a very decent 

return in today's market. You should require them to share 

flown to 10 percent. It is the floor they agreed upon, you 

should hold them to it. 

Lastly, I would encourage you to examine essentially 

in every account nook and cranny to see if there are other ways 

that you can reduce wherever possible any surcharges you impose 

upon this utility's customers. And what I have in mind is 

something that has happened very recently. Yesterday, I am 

aware Public Counsel filed a motion asking you to consolidate 

Florida Power and Light Company's storm recovery case with its 

base rates case and with a depreciation case the company just 

filed. And as I understand they did so on the basis that in 

the depreciation study Florida Power and Light reports that it 

had something on the order of 1.2 billion, billion with a B, 

dollars of excess depreciation monies. Those monies - -  if that 

is true, those monies, of course, are essentially customer 

supplied money held in trust, if you will, by the utility that 
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if it is excessive as described by Public Counsel, is no longer 

needed for purpose for which it was collected. 

Now, if that is true, there is a possibility one 

aould hope from the customer's perspective that that excess 

noney for depreciation could be used to settle up on storm 

damages, recharge the reserve without any surcharges and so 

forth. I mention that because the Commission and the staff and 

the parties to the extent they can ought to try and examine 

ahat the situation is with depreciation with this utility. If 

Florida Power and Light had excessive depreciation dollars that 

night be used to reduce storm damages, perhaps Progress does. 

I appreciate your time. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN BAEZ: Thank you, Mr. Twomey. 

Commissioners, I had mentioned to you, and I guess I 

ail1 mention to everyone else, we are done with the opening 

statements and we are ready to move on to the witnesses. And 

as  the hour is around 12:30 now by my watch, I have planned on 

breaking at 1:30 unless you would rather use the - -  you tell 

your pleasure - -  unless you would rather use this natural 

breaking point before we start taking witnesses. 1:30 is fine? 

Are you all okay with it? All right. We will go to 1 : 3 0  and 

just try and get as many witnesses. 

Are all the witnesses in the room? How would 

somebody that wasn't in the room know, right? This is without 

medication, people, I want you to know. All right. Well, 
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:hose witnesses that are in the room, please stand up. Let's 

;wear everyone in and we will be taking testimony. 

(Witnesses sworn.) 

Thank you. Sit down. 

Mr. Sasso, we are ready for your first witness. 

MR. WALLS: Mr. Jeff Lyash. And at this time we will 

)ass out his direct testimony, unless the Commissioners already 

lave it. 

CHAIRMAN BAEZ: No, I think we have got his prefiled. 

JEFF LYASH 

vas called as a witness on behalf of Progress Energy Florida, 

ind having been duly sworn, testified as follows: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

3Y MR. WALLS: 

Q Mr. Lyash, will you please introduce yourself to the 

:ommission and provide your address? 

A My name is Jef f  Lyash. I live at 10215 Golden Eagle 

)rive in Seminole, Florida, and I am the Senior Vice-president 

If Energy Delivery for Progress Energy Florida. 

Q And, Mr. Lyash, have you filed prefiled direct 

;estimony and exhibits in this proceeding? 

A Yes, I have. 

Q And do you have that in front of you? 

A Yes, I do. 

Q Do you have any changes to make to your prefiled 
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cestimony or exhibits at this time? 

A No, I do not. 

Q And if I asked you the same questions in your 

?refiled testimony today, would you give the same answers that 

2re indicated in your prefiled testimony? 

A Yes, I would. 

MR. WALLS: We request at this time that the prefiled 

testimony be moved into evidence as if it were read in the 

record. 

CHAIRMAN BAEZ: I think Mr. Lyash's testimony has 

3lready been moved into the record, and also let the record 

reflect that the two exhibits attached to his prefiled direct 

Zestimony, JL-1 and JL-2, have been previously marked as 

Zxhibits 7 and 8. 

MS. BRUBAKER: Actually, Chairman, since there were 

some objections to the testimony, the testimony has not been 

?ntered into the record. 

CHAIRMAN BAEZ: You know, I knew I was going to slip 

~p somewhere. If there is no objection we will move Mr. 

Lyash's direct testimony into the record as though read. And 

3s I had stated earlier, JL-1 and JL-2 have been previously 

narked as 7 and 8. Go ahead, Mr. Walls. 
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FPSC DOCKET NO. 041272-E1 

IN RE: PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA, INC.’S PETITION 
FOR APPROVAL OF STORM COST RECOVERY CLAUSE FOR 

EXTRAORDINARY EXPENDITURES RELATED TO HURRICANES 
CHARLEY, FRANCES, JEANNE, AND IVAN. 

DIRECT TESTIMONY OF JEFF LYASH 

I. INTRODUCTION AND QUALIFICATIONS 

Please state your name, employer, and business address. 

My name is Jeff Lyash. I am employed by Progress Energy, Inc. (“Progress 

Energy”). My business address is 100 Central Avenue, St. Petersburg, Florida 33701. 

Please tell us your position with Progress Energy, and describe your duties and 

responsibilities in that position. 

I am Senior Vice President of Energy Delivery-Florida. I am responsible for 

overseeing all aspects of energy transmission and distribution in Florida. 

Please summarize your educational background and employment experience. 

I graduated with a bachelor’s degree in mechanical engineering from Drexel 

University in 1984. Prior to joining Progress Energy, I worked with the Nuclear 

Regulatory Commission in a number of capacities. In 1993, I joined Progress 

Energy, and spent eight years at the Brunswick Nuclear Plant in Southport, North 

Carolina, ultimately becoming Director of Site Operations. In January 2002, I 

assumed the position of Vice President of TransmissiodEnergy Delivery in the 
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Carolinas. On November 1,2003, I was promoted to Senior Vice President of Energy 

Delivery-Florida, which is the position I currently hold. 

11. PURPOSE OF TESTIMONY 

What is the purpose of your testimony in this proceeding? 

I am testifying on behalf of Progress Energy Florida, Inc. (“PEF” or the “Company”) 

in support of the petition for approval of the extraordinary level of O&M expenses 

incurred by the Company on behalf of customers caused by Hurricanes Charley, 

Frances, Ivan, and Jeanne. My testimony will generally describe the Company and 

our strong performance during the unprecedented 2004 hurricane season to provide 

prompt restoration of electric service following each of these storms. I will introduce 

the Company’s other witnesses who will describe in detail the Company’s preparation 

for and response to the 2004 hurricane season, the extraordinary storm-related costs 

incurred by the Company, and the operation, impact, and benefits of the Storm Cost 

Recovery Clause that PEF proposes. 

16 

17 Q. Do you have any exhibits to your testimony? 

1 18 A. Yes. I am sponsoring the following exhibits to my testimony: 

19 JL-1 Map of 2004 Hurricane Tracks. 

JL-2 2004 Hurricane Summary Impacts. 

1 21 These exhibits were prepared under my direction, and each is true and accurate. 

22 

23 
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111. INTRODUCTION OF THE COMPANY’S PROPOSAL. 

Please generally describe the Company. 

PEF is an investor-owned electric utility company that serves approximately 1.5 

million retail customers in our service area in Florida. Our service area comprises 

approximately 20,000 square miles in 35 of the state’s 67 counties, encompassing the 

cities of St. Petersburg and Clearwater and densely populated areas surrounding 

Orlando, Ocala, and Tallahassee. PEF supplies electricity at retail to approximately 

350 communities and at wholesale to about 21 Florida municipalities, utilities, and 

power agencies in the State of Florida. 

What impact did Hurricanes Charley, Frances, Ivan, and Jeanne have on your 

customers’ electric service? 

These four humcanes struck our service territory during a short period of time 

between August 13 and September 25 of this year. Exhibit - (JL-1) to my 

testimony shows the path and intensity of each storm through our service territory. 

Exhibit - (JL-2) to my testimony summarizes the impacts of the 2004 hurricanes. 

Hurricane Charley struck first throughout much of our service territory 

causing a peak customer outage of 502,000 customers or 32.7% of our total number 

of customers. All customers capable of receiving power were restored within nine 

days. We estimate the total costs for Hurricane Charley to be $146 million. 

Hurricane Frances struck next on September 4‘h, again with widespread 

impacts on our service territory. At the peak, 832,898 customers lost power, which is 

54.4% of our total number of customers. All customers capable of receiving power 
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were restored within six days. We estimate the total costs for Hurricane Frances to be 

$128.6 million. 

Hurricane Ivan made landfall on September 1 6'h near Gulfshores, Alabama. 

At the peak, 8,891 customers in five counties we serve lost power during that storm, 

or .6% of ow total customers. All customers capable of receiving power were 

restored within two days. We estimate the total costs for Hurricane Ivan to be $5.7 

million. 

Finally Hurricane Jeanne struck on September 25'h. At the peak, 722,012 

customers in 33 of our 35 counties lost power, or 47% of the total number of our 

customers. All customers capable of receiving power were restored within five days. 

We estimate the total storm-related costs for this hurricane to be $86.2 million. 

Over this short period of time we experienced over 2 million cumulative 

customer outages. 

15 Q. How did the Company respond to the hurricanes? 

16 A. The Company performed well in response to these hurricanes. Progress Energy is a 

17 

18 

19 

20 
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23 

recognized leader in this area, particularly as a result of our restoration efforts after 

recent ice storms in the Carolinas. We have won the Edison Electric Institute 

Emergency Response Award four times since the program's inception six years ago. 

We are the only company to receive this award four times. 

Our obligation to provide reliable and adequate electric service includes the 

duty to have a comprehensive storm response plan for managing recovery from major 

disasters, including hurricanes that could strike our customers and service territory. 
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1 The obligation to serve also includes the duty to implement that plan well in the event 

disaster does strike. 
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We have a comprehensive storm plan that reflects the cumulative wisdom and 

best practices of both PEF and our sister utility in North Carolina. We rapidly 

absorbed lessons learned and improved our plan and our execution of the plan with 

6 

7 

each of the storms we experienced this year I 
I 8 Q. Please describe your storm plan. 

9 A. Our plan is comprehensive in that it covers all phases and aspects of our response to 

storms. This includes everything from pre-storm preparation to post-storm 

restoration. It includes operations, logistics and support, customer service, support to 
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local and state governments’ emergency response activities, communications, and 

more. Specific plans are in place for Generation, Energy Control Center (“ECC”), 

Transmission, and Distribution. Some highlights are as follows: 

I 

I l5 

1 
t 

0 Generation and ECC 

I would like to briefly address Generation and ECC since Distribution and 

Transmission will be described in more detail by other witnesses. Our generating 

units maintain storm plans specifying conditions under which we are able to continue 

operating or must ramp down our units. In advance of a storm, we constantly monitor 

anticipated storm tracks and conditions, taking any necessary actions to protect our 

generating units, and other operations. Throughout this process, procedures are 

16 

17 

19 

20 
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23 ECC. 

followed to coordinate any potential ramp-downs and subsequent start-ups with our I 22 

23 
I followed to coordinate any potential ramp-downs and subsequent start-ups with our 

ECC. 
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Our ECC plays a critical coordination role prior to, during, and after a storm. 

In addition to coordinating with our generating units, our ECC monitors the status of 

our electrical grid and helps to orchestrate transmission and distribution restoration 

priorities for maximum system stability and restoration efficiency. At the same time, 

our ECC stays in contact with the Florida Reliability Coordinating Council and other 

interconnected utilities to ensure maximum coordination fiom a statewide 

perspective. 

Organizational Structure 

Our plan defines an organizational structure for managing storm damage restoration 

that is in many cases different fiom our day-to-day operating structure. The storm 

response structure has centralized control of overall mobilization, staging of crews, 

logistics support, and damage assessment. The plan defines key roles and 

responsibilities of those who work in the storm center as well as employees working 

in support roles. Our organizational structure and storm response plans allow our 

local field offices to focus entirely on restoration of service and customer service. 

0 Communication 

We have learned that communication is a critical component of successfid storm 

restoration. Our plan encompasses proactive advertising and media communication 

of public awareness and safety messages before, during, and after the storm; working 

with the media to provide customers with estimated times of restoration; 

communicating directly with individual customers; and communicating with local, 

county, and state officials to keep them informed of our activities. 

0 Anticipation and Preparation 
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Our storm response efforts begin well before a storm strikes our service territory. We 

use a staged response to approaching storms that keys off tropical storm force winds 

reaching our service area. The first high winds can be hundreds of miles and hours 

ahead of landfall of the eye of a storm. At 72 hours, we evaluate potential needs, 

check our materials, and place manpower on alert. At 48 hours, our alert status goes 

up a notch and we begin to mobilize company and outside resources as dictated by 

the scope and path of a storm. At 24 hours, we refine our mobilization to the latest 

weather forecasts and ensure that we are as ready as we can be for the impending 

damages and outages. At this stage we are mobilizing inside and outside resources 

that we expect to need for damage repair, we staff up to storm levels at our customer 

call center, and we call up our employee volunteers in important restoration support 

roles such as customer calls, staging and logistical assistance, damage assessment, 

and guiding out-of -town crews. 

Given the geographic breadth and back-to-back nature of this summer’s 

hurricanes, we were forced to go to extraordinary measures to compete for resources 

that were stretched thin. We called on help from Progress Energy Carolinas, 

resources from the Southeast Electric Exchange, and even went to the West Coast to 

secure manpower in the case of Hurricane Jeanne. Moving resources into position 

was made dificult due to Florida’s relatively isolated geography and the fact that 

other areas of the Southeast were battling remnants of the prior storm as we were 

preparing for the next storm. 

Damage Assessment 
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Q. 

A. 

Damage assessment is one of the most critical steps in restoration. It is important to 

take time to learn how extensive the damage to our system is and where it is so that 

we can deploy our resources most efficiently during actual restoration. The goal of 

this phase is to validate resource needs and establish restoration times. We have a 

corporate damage team that tackles this challenge, using all available technology 

from customer outage call mapping devices to helicopters flying the transmission 

lines and the hardest hit areas. 

Restoration 

Where possible, restoration begins in parallel with damage assessment efforts. Our 

goal is to restore service to as many customers as quickly and safely as possible - 

starting with the transmission system and working through the distribution system - 

and resources are allocated with that objective in mind. We give first priority to 

facilities needed to ensure public health and safety as well as critical public 

infrastructure. 

0 Sweep 

Once initial restoration work is accomplished, we conduct a system sweep. We 

visually assess every part of the entire system to identifl items that were damaged 

during the storm but were not critical for initial restoration. 

How well did the Company execute its plan? 

We executed our plan well and got better with each storm. One of the main measures 

we use to judge our performance is the degree to which we met our estimated storm 

restoration times. We base our initial storm restoration estimates on a blend of 
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damage assessment model predictions, projections of resources that will be available 

to us, and our local operational knowledge and experience. These estimates are 

publicly available and we view them as our commitments to our customers. On the 

whole, we achieved excellent performance either meeting or exceeding these 

estimates. Beyond this, we were able to quickly apply lessons learned to improve our 

performance from storm to storm. 

7 

8 Q. Please describe your communication effort in more detail. 

9 A. Our communication effort with our customers began before the storm with messages 

related to awareness, customer preparation, outage reporting instructions and safety. 

It was important for us to reinforce key messages with our customers including 

safety, home preparation, and personal preparations in the event of a sustained power 

outage. It was also important that we communicate to local government our 

preparedness, confirm contact information and critical needs, and provide information 

that they utilize in responding to their constituents. 
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Our internal readiness included staffing up to maximum levels in our call 

centers to be able to respond to the tremendous number of calls received. We have 

three state-of-the-art Customer Service Centers -- two Florida locations in Clearwater 

and Lake Mary as well as one North Carolina location in Raleigh. Normally we 

would have 250 customer service representatives handling calls 24 hours a day, seven 

days a week. During the storms we had over 425 associates just dedicated to 

handling outage calls. Customers want to know that we’re aware they are without 

power and when we will have service restored. Our customers want and expect us to 
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be able to tell them when their power will be restored to their home or business. Our 

system accepts outage reports and provides time of restoration estimates on an 

automated basis. Estimated restoration times are updated as frequently as new 

information becomes available. In addition, our system puts any customer who 

requests it in touch with a live representative and provides follow up calls to all 

customers who request them. The total call volumes during the storms were: 

0 Hurricane Charley: 502,000 peak customer outages/465,670 customer outage calls 

0 Hurricane Frances: 832,898 peak customer outages/ 929,228 customer outage calls 

0 Hurricane Ivan: 8,891 peak customer outage/ 55,700 customer outage calls 

0 Hurricane Jeanne: 722,O 12 peak customer outage/ 74 1,920 customer outage calls. 

As you can see from these numbers, handling customer outage calls is an important 

component of storm management. 

In addition to one-on-one customer communications, we had an extensive 

communication effort with the public and the media. A storm communication media 

center was operated 24 hours a day, 7 days a week to meet all media needs. We 

conducted daily press briefings and worked hard to provide all media in our service 

territories all the information needed to keep the public aware of on-going safety 

issues and restoration efforts. In addition to the daily briefing, members of the press 

were included in tours of damaged areas as well as our storm management centers. 

Information updates on restoration efforts were provided at set intervals four times a 

day, scheduled around normal broadcast news times. 

Another major component of our communication effort during a storm is 

providing updates and liaisons to a variety of local and state officials with storm 

10 
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management responsibilities. This group of officials includes emergency operations 

personnel in each county and the state emergency operations center as well as local 

county and municipal government officials, the Public Service Commission and Staff, 

legislative members and their staffs, and executive branch officials and staff. In 

advance of each storm, Progress Energy developed a comprehensive staffing plan 

with a team of representatives assigned to each region to communicate proactively 

and daily with counties and municipalities to support their emergency response 

efforts, provide information and address local issues. As a part of this effort, Progress 

Energy assigned a professional with access to operational resources to each county 

Emergency Operations Center as well as the state Emergency Operations Center. 

This allowed us to provide needed information and respond to critical issues as 

quickly as possible. The communication with these groups was definitely a two-way 

street and we were impressed with the consistent message from all levels of 

government to get power restored to as many customers as quickly as we could. 

The total cost for communication for the four storms was $3.6 million and is 

included in the total O&M expenses of $25 1.9 million. 

17 

18 Q. 

19 of the storm-related costs. 

20 A. 

21 

Please explain why the Company filed its Petition seeking recovery of a portion 

We experienced unprecedented levels of damage from the four hurricanes that struck 

PEF’s service territory, resulting in a total cost of $366 million. Capital expenditures 

account for $54.9 million of that total. The remaining $3 1 1.4 million is O&M storm 

related expenses. The Company has a Storm Damage Reserve for O&M expenses 

I 
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associated with storm damage. Customers support the Reserve through base rates; at 

the end of this year the value of the Reserve will be $46.9 million. However, the 

Reserve was not designed to cover all levels of damage since it would be too costly to 

do so. The Storm Damage Reserve will bring the total O&M costs of the storms 

down to $264.5 million. Of this amount $25 1.9 million is allocated to OUT retail 

customers. We are here today to ask the Commission to approve a mechanism for the 

recovery of the Company’s prudent and reasonable O&M storm-related costs of 

$25 1.9 million. These are the O&M expenses, net of the Storm Reserve that we 

incurred to promptly restore service to our customers after each of the storms. We 

did a good job of promptly, efficiently, and safely restoring electric service to our 

customers. We believe that recovery of these expenses over a two year period on a 

dollar for dollar basis through a clause mechanism would be fair to customers and 

shareholders. We will not make a profit for the amount recovered under our two year 

proposal. 

The $54.9 million in stom-related capital expenditures allocated to the 

Company’s retail jurisdiction will be reported in surveillance reports and absorbed in 

current rates until the Company’s next base rate adjustment. 

18 

19 Q. Has the Company’s storm-related work been completed? 

20 A. 

21 

22 

No. Recovery from storms has two distinct phases. First our effort is solely focused 

on restoring service to our customers as quickly as we can consistent with safety 

standards for our customers and employees. Once that restoration work is 

23 accomplished, we turn our focus to ensuring the ongoing reliability of the 

12 



0 7 5  

1 

1 2  

3 

4 
I 
I 5 Q. 

6 A. I 
7 

9 I 
10 

I 11 

I l 5  
16 

17 

I 
19 

8 20 

22 

I 23 

transmission and distribution systems. That work is still underway and is due to be 

completed by 2”d quarter 2005. We estimate the total cost for “sweeps” work to be 

$1 1 million; that amount is included in the total recovery of $25 1.9 million. 

Has the Company experienced other impacts as a result of the hurricanes? 

Yes. The financial community has been monitoring our hurricane experiences and 

the impact they have on the Company. They are interested to know the status of cost 

recovery of our expenses incurred as a result of the storms and how quickly PEF will 

recover these expenses. We believe it is in everyone’s best interest to resolve any 

regulatory uncertainty about that as soon as can reasonably be done. 

Is the Company’s cost recovery proposal consistent with its regulatory 

obligations and fair to the Company’s customers? 

Yes. Our proposal is consistent with our obligation to provide adequate, reliable 

electric service to our customers. It is our duty to plan for storms, to execute our plan 

when storms strike, to restore service as quickly as we can in a safe manner that 

protects the public, our customers, and our employees and contractors. We fully 

realize that electricity plays a critical role in the lives of our customers and that it is 

our duty to promptly restore electric service. We also realize the critical need to 

support county and municipal efforts to provide emergency response by assuring that 

restoration of power to critical electric infrastructure occurs as quickly as possible. 

We believe that we fulfilled that duty during the four hurricanes that struck our 

customers during the 2004 hurricane season. We kept careful and conscientious track 
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of our storm-related expenses. We did not temper our restoration efforts because of a 

concern that cost recovery would not be forthcoming. We have met OUT obligations 

under the regulatory compact; the Commission should permit the prompt recovery of 

our reasonable and prudent storm-related costs. 

Q. What does the Company propose to do in the future to respond to storm 

damage? 

A. 

Q* 

A. 

So far, 2004 has been an unprecedented hurricane season. We will continue to look 

at the adequacy of the storm damage reserve and the likelihood of additional storms 

over the next few years. We will continue to report to and work with the Commission 

to make sure that our storm responsiveness continues to be excellent. 

Will you please introduce the Company’s other witnesses in this proceeding? 

In addition to my testimony, the Company is sponsoring these additional witnesses: 

David McDonald: Mi. McDonald will describe the Company’s storm plan for its 

distribution system, explain the Company’s storm preparation efforts, response, and 

restoration efforts before, during, and following the four hurricanes of the 2004 

hurricane season, and describe the damage to the Company’s system as a result of the 

hurricanes. 

Sarah Rogers: Ms. Rogers will likewise describe the Company’s storm plan for its 

transmission system, explain the Company’s storm preparation efforts, response, and 

restoration efforts before, during, and following the four hurricanes of the 2004 
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hurricane season, and describe the damage to the Company’s system as a result of the 

hurricanes. 

Mark Wimberlv: Mr. Wimberly will explain how storm-related costs were estimated 

and tracked for the four hurricanes, explain how the storm-related costs are accounted 

for, and testify to the Company’s total storm-related costs, 

Javier Portuondo: Mr. Portuondo will explain the Company’s Storm Cost Recovery 

Clause proposal, describing how the Storm Cost Recovery Clause will work, what the 

storm cost recovery factors are, and what the impact to the typical residential 

customer bill will be. He will also explain why a Storm Cost Recovery Clause is the 

most appropriate recovery mechanism for the Company’s extraordinary storm-related 

costs from Hurricanes Charley, Frances, Ivan, and Jeanne. 

Q. 

A. Yes. 

Does this conclude your testimony? 
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3Y MR. WALLS: 

Q Mr. Lyash, do you have a summary of your prefiled 

zest imony? 

A Yes, I do. 

Q And will you please summarize your testimony for the 

:ommi s s ion? 

A Yes, I will. As I said, my name is Jeff Lyash, and 

2mployed by Progress Energy Company, and I am the Senior 

lice-President of Energy Delivery for Florida. I am 

responsible for oversight of all aspects of energy transmission 

m d  dist.ribution in Florida. 

We had an unprecedented hurricane season in 2 0 0 4  as 

four hurricanes struck our service territory back-to-back over 

2 six-week period. The damage to our transmission and 

Iistribution system was severe, and we experienced over two 

nillion cumulative customer outages over the course of the four 

iurricanes, yet we were able to respond quickly and perform 

vel1 throughout the preparation and restoration process. We 

vere able to restore power to all customers capable of 

receiving power within nine days the Hurricane Charley, six 

lays for Hurricane Frances, two for Hurricane Ivan, and five 

lays for Hurricane Jeanne. Our customers appreciated our 

2fforts to keep the power on and restore it quickly to their 

iomes and businesses when there was an outage as you know from 

3ur customer service hearings. 
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We were able to perform so well because we have a 

comprehensive storm plan that includes everything from 

pre-storm preparation to post-storm restoration. This includes 

specific storm plans for generation, the energy control center, 

transmission, and distribution. Our generation storm plan 

calls for constant monitoring of storm tracks and conditions 

that take the necessary actions to protect our generating 

stations and their operations. This includes coordinating with 

the energy control center which monitors the status of our 

ilectrical grid and helps orchestrate the restoration process 

€or transmission and distribution to maintain system stability 

2nd restoration efficiency. 

An important aspect of our storm plan is our 

zommunication efforts with our customers and with state, local, 

2nd municipal government officials, the Commission and staff, 

2nd members and staff of the legislative and executive branches 

3f state government. Our customers demand and need constant 

zommunications throughout the hurricane preparation and 

restoration process concerning storm preparation, outage 

reporting instructions, safety, restoration efforts, and times. 

To handle our direct customer contacts we nearly 

loubled our customer service representatives during the 

iurricanes, and they handled over 2 million customer outage 

:alls over the course of those storms. In addition to our 

iirect communications with customers, we reach out to them and 
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the public through various media on a constant basis over the 

course of the storm preparation and restoration so that we can 

keep them informed. Maintaining this contact and providing 

them with information is important to them, and it is a 

function of our storm plan that we take very seriously. 

Likewise, we recognize that state, local, and 

municipal officials need access to our personnel for 

information and input on priorities for storm restoration. We 

assign a team of representatives to each region to communicate 

proactively and daily with counties and municipalities to 

support their emergency response efforts, provide valuable 

information, and to address local issues. The constant message 

from these officials and the state officials we dealt with 

during the hurricanes was to get power restored to as many 

customers as quickly as possible. That is exactly what we did. 

And I am very proud of our employees for rising to the occasion 

and performing so well during what was a massive restoration 

process. 

We ask you to recognize that what we did was what our 

customers and the state and local officials wanted us to do. 

We ask you to approve our petition to establish a cost-recovery 

nechanism for our prudent and reasonable storm-related costs in 

excess of our storm damage reserve. We incurred these expenses 

properly to restore prompt service to our customers for each of 

these four hurricanes. Thank you. 
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MR. WALLS: As this time we tender Mr. Lyash for 

cross-examination. 

CHAIRMAN BAEZ: Thank you. 

Ms. Christensen. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MS. CHRISTENSEN: 

Q Good afternoon, Mr. Lyash. 

Mr. Lyash, you would agree that Progress as a 

regulated utility has an obligation to provide safe, reliable 

electric service within their territory, is that correct? 

A That is correct. 

Q And you would also agree that Progress has a monopoly 

on electric service within its territory, correct? 

A That is correct. 

Q Isn't it correct that as part of being a regulated 

electric monopoly is that you have certain regulatory 

obligations? 

A Yes. 

Q And you would agree that it is part of Progress' 

regulatory obligation to plan for storms, including hurricanes? 

A Yes, I believe we have an obligation to provide for a 

reasonable level of storm response. 

Q Okay. Progress' regulatory obligation requires it to 

restart service to customers as quickly and safely as possible 

after hurricanes, is that correct? 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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Yes. 

And you would also agree that all of the telephone 

companies and power companies in Florida have storm plans to 

deal with hurricanes in advance of the hurricane seasons? 

A I would assume so. 

Q Now, isn't it correct that as part of the regulatory 

3bligation between the company, the state, and the ratepayer, 

provided the opportunity to earn a fair return the company is 

3n its equity? 

A Yes. 

Q And 1 01 ould also agree that some of Progress' 

;rustomers suffered economic losses due to the multiple 

iurricanes that hit your territory, correct? 

A Yes, I would assume so. 

Q And would you also agree that some of those customers 

Ln your territory were hit by more than one of those 

iurr icane s ? 

A Yes, they were. 

Q And isn't it correct that Progress' position would 

lass on through a surcharge almost 100 percent of the costs of 

;hese hurricanes to customers, a majority of which who suffered 

.n the hurricanes? 

A I believe the approach that is being taken with the 

lccounting is to charge direct costs to the storms. I don't 

believe that passes all storm costs on to the customers. We 
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have a substantial amount of work that we did not accomplish 

during the storms that we have had to make up since then often 

at a premium price. We have revenues lost associated with the 

storms, and so while I would agree that we are proposing to 

pass on the direct costs, as we believe has been the process 

since Hurricane Andrew, I would not agree that that necessarily 

implies that we are passing on all costs or all risks to our 

customers. 

Q Well, you would agree that those follow-up recovery 

efforts are costs that Progress intends to include in this 

recovery, correct? 

A No. We have a substantial amount of corrective and 

preventative maintenance and the normal work of the electric 

utility business that we were unable to accomplish during the 

period of the storms which we must carry forward and accomplish 

anyway, and as I said, often at a premium price. 

Q Well, let me refer you. On Page 12 of your testimony 

you state that you believe that Progress received 

dollar-for-dollar recovery of those funds Progress spent on the 

hurricanes, is that correct? 

A I'm sorry, could you repeat that? 

Q On Page 12 of your direct testimony, you indicate 

that Progress should receive dollar-for-dollar recovery for 

those funds that it spent on the hurricanes, is that correct? 

A Yes, we should recover the direct costs associated 
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with the hurricanes. 

Q You would agree that Progress has charged the storm 

fund a portion of your regular salary, correct? 

A I would assume that we charge the storm fund for the 

direct costs associated with responding to the storm and that 

would include salaries. 

Q And that would include part of your regular salary, 

correct? 

A I would assume so. 

Q And you also agree that a portion of the direct storm 

costs, according to Progress, includes other managers and 

nonmanagers regular salaries, as well, if they in Progress' 

words are directly related to the hurricanes? 

A Yes. 

Q Isn't it correct the regular salaries of yourself and 

Dther Progress employees are included in normal 0&M and are 

paid f o r  by customers through base rates? 

A Well, under the approach that is being employed here, 

rather - -  and I think this has been said before - -  rather than 

doing what amounts to a mini-rate case that accounts for all 

iosts and all revenue impacts, the approach is to charge direct 

zosts as a straightforward and simple approximation of the 

impact of the storms. 

Q Are regular salaries included as part of base rates? 

A Under normal circumstances, yes. 
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Q Did you in your budgets for September and October 

include regular salaries for PEF employees? 

A Yes, for September and October outside of storm costs 

de would have charged base salaries to base rates. 

Q Would you have collected for and would you have 

mdgeted for regular salaries for those months? 

A Yes, we would have in our normal budget at the 

beginning of the year. 

Q Isn't it correct that Progress is collecting twice 

for those regular salaries, once through base rates and once 

through storm funds? 

A No, I don't believe that is correct. 

Q Isn't it correct that base rates cover the cost of 

vehicles that you and Progress employees drive every day during 

the normal course of business? 

A Yes, the budget does cover normal vehicle costs. 

Q And isn't Progress charging a portion of that vehicle 

cost to the storm fund if that vehicle was used for hurricane 

restoration operations? 

A No, I believe Progress is charging the direct cost of 

the vehicle that was used to support storm restoration to the 

storm fund. 

Q Since base rates cover the cost of the vehicles, 

wouldn't you agree that customers should not have to pay again 

for those vehicles through the storm surcharge? 
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A Once again, those vehicles are employed to do the 

core work of the utility and the core work of the utility will 

be done either during the storm period, or as in this case, 

subsequent to the storm period stretching into this year 

incurring those base costs. 

Q And what you are referring to is essentially catch 

work? 

UP 

A All of the work that was not accomplished during the 

period of the storms which must subsequently be accomplished. 

Q So it is your theory that catch-up work offsets 

double-dipping? 

A Well, I'm not entirely clear on why you characterize 

it as double-dipping. All I can say is that the work that 

would have been done, the work that our folks do every day of 

the year does not cease to exist because a storm has occurred. 

There is still equipment that must be maintained, new customers 

that must be connected, and preventive and corrective 

maintenance that must be accomplished, and to the extent that 

that is not done during the storms, it is our responsibility to 

zomplete that work to maintain and preserve the reliability of 

the system and the quality of the customer service. 

Q Am I correct that when you refer to extraordinary 

storm-related costs, Progress includes normal salaries and 

vehicle expenses? 

A I'm sorry, say that again. 
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Q Am I correct in assuming under your definition that 

when you refer to extraordinary storm-related costs you are 

including a portion of normal salaries and vehicle expenses? 

A I am including vehicle expenses and salaries for 

those vehicles and individuals who directly supported the 

storms. 

Q And am I correct also to understand that all of these 

costs are considered extraordinary because they are related to 

hurricane restoration rather than the portion of the costs that 

are above normally expected costs? 

Q 

A I think, as I said before, the approach that is 

undertaken here rather than accounting for in a rate case like 

proceeding all costs and revenues is to approximate costs by 

crharging direct costs and that is, in fact, what we are doing 

here. The notion that somehow the work that otherwise would 

have been done evaporates, I think, is flawed. 

Q Well, you would agree that some of that work may go 

3way as a result of the storm, correct? 

A No. 

Q Well, let me ask you this. Regarding communication, 

aould you agree that part of your basic regulatory obligation 

is to keep your customers informed during emergencies such as 

tornados and hurricanes? 

A Yes. 

And would you also agree that you have included 
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public information expenses in the costs that make up the 

surcharge Progress is proposing in this docket? 

A Our base operation and our base charges are 

predicated on noncatastrophic, nonrecurring events. In a case 

like a hurricane where it is catastrophic, nonrecurrent, and 

extreme, we need to spend a substantial additional amount of 

monies communicating with the customers. As I said, doubling 

call center representatives, communicating through the media so 

that they understand our response and can plan accordingly, and 

so they get the sort of safety messages that we think are 

important to them. 

Q So your answer is yes, you have included some public 

information and communication expenses in the storm request? 

A Yes. 

Q Now, on Page 10 at Line 11 of your testimony, you 

start discussing - -  well, Pages 9, 10, and 11 you discuss these 

zommunications, correct? 

A What page are you on? 

Q Through Pages 9, 10, and 11 you discuss 

communications, correct? 

A Uh-huh, yes. 

Q On Page 9, Line 11, you state that it was important 

for us to reinforce key messages with our customers, is that 

correct? 

A That is correct. 
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Q And you also state on Page 9 that it was important 

:hat Progress communicate to local government authorities, 

zorrect? 

A That is correct. 

Q And then referring to Page 10, Line 13, you state we 

lad extensive communications efforts with the public and the 

nedia, correct? 

A Correct. 

Q And on Page 11, Line 13 of your testimony, you state 

:hat you are going to bill customers approximately $3.6 million 

?xtra for providing this service, is that correct? 

A Correct. 

Q So it is Progress' position that base rates don't 

:over the expense of keeping the public and governmental 

lgencies informed in case of emergencies as part of your 

regulatory obligation? 

A Well, I think there are two points to be made. The 

Eirst is that the scope and cost of the communication efforts 

3ssociated with this type of catastrophic events go beyond what 

vas contemplated in base rates. I believe that to be the case. 

lnd the second is, once again, back to the notion of charging 

lirect costs as an approximation of customer impact as opposed 

:o a more extensive rate proceeding. 

Q So let me ask you this, is it Progress' position 

2ecause they did a good job in restoring service, Progress 
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should be given a dollar-for-dollar recovery through a clause 

and this would be fair to customers and shareholders, is that 

correct? 

A That is your characterization of our position. I 

think Mr. Sasso stated our position clearly in the opening 

statement. 

Q Under Progress' position, your shareholders would pay 

essentially nothing toward storm recovery, is that correct? 

A I believe our shareholders are picking up risk, risk 

associated with what went into preparing for these storms, the 

lost revenue, the premiums that we need to pay to make the 

system whole once again, which will continue to come out over 

the next weeks and months and perhaps years. 

Q Mr. Lyash, if you are familiar, did your return on 

equity go up between June 2 0 0 4  from approximately 1 2 . 5  percent 

to December of 2 0 0 4  up to 1 3 . 6  percent? 

A That is a question I would defer to Mr. Portuondo, 

3ur regulatory accounting person. 

Q Okay. As part of the regulatory compact, the 

Zommission as the regulator, through base rates ensures that 

Progress receives a fair return on its development, is that 

correct? 

A Yes. 

Q And isn't it correct that the storm firm accrual has 

been collected through base rates? 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

2 5  

91 

A That is correct. 

Q Isn't it also correct that storm-related funds have 

never been collected through a clause prior to this request? 

A I'm not clear on the point, I can't really say. 

MS. CHRISTENSEN: I have no further questions. 

CHAIRMAN BAEZ: Mr. McWhirter. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. MCWHIRTER: 

Q Mr. Lyash, on a scale of one to ten, how would you 

rate your public relations program? 

A I'm not sure how to respond. I'm not sure what a 

scale of one to ten in terms of public relations really means. 

I would say that it is a focus that we have during normal 

operations, but particularly when things are abnormal, because 

that is when people really want and need the information. I 

guess I could put an arbitrary number on it. I'm not sure what 

it would mean. 

Q Well, would you say your public relations program is 

poor, good, or excellent? 

A I would say it is very good. 

Q And the cost of your public relations program, you 

include that in base rates? 

A I would imagine so, some perhaps not all. I'm not 

clear. 

Q And do you know during the storm period how the 
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normal salaries were treated? Were they added to your storm 

recovery costs? 

A The normal salaries associated with those individuals 

directly supporting storm recovery are part of this filing. 

Q All right. Now, I was a little bit concerned when 

you said that you have backup work such as connecting customers 

that still needs to be performed. Do you have customers that 

needed connection in September that are still not connected 

today? 

A Well, we have a lot of customers, so I don't want to 

give a specific accounting, but in general what I would tell 

you is that during the six-week period of the storms there was 

very little customer connect work done because of the nature of 

the events, and that that work needed to be caught up. And 

that the additional customer connect work really surges after a 

storm of this nature because of the pent up demand as business 

ramps back up as power is restored, and that creates a large 

catch-up wave that would have materialized during the six weeks 

but not for the storm. 

We work very directly with our customers to negotiate 

connect dates, and post-storm we have had to negotiate connect 

dates that were not optimal with customers, and they generally 

understand. We try to do it as expeditiously as possible 

within the constraints of the resources and physical materials 

svailable. 
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Q Can you give me the beginning and ending date of the 

storm period that you classify? Did it start August 6th and 

end on September 15th, or what was the time period? 

MR. WALLS: I'm going to object to the question. It 

is unclear to me what he means by storm period. Does he mean 

the actual time the storm occurred, the time preparing for it, 

the time restoring it? I'm not clear. 

MR. McWHIRTER: Well, I am referring - -  

Q In your answer to my last question you talked about 

the six-week storm period. What six weeks is that? 

A Well, that was kind of a casual reference to that 

period of time that the storms were actually impacting the 

Florida service territory. 

Q And that began when and ended when? 

A I don't have the dates in front of me. Sometime in 

August into September. 

Q And ended sometime around mid-September? 

A (Indicating yes.) 

Q And you had people waiting for normal connection in 

mid-September that are not connected yet? 

A Well, keep in mind that a lot of our customer 

connects we work with developers and industry who have a scope 

of work. It is not necessarily a customer who is sitting at 

home with the lights out. It is installing infrastructure, 

underground networks, transformers, building overhead 
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extensions. To put the system in a condition where we can 

support the on-going stream of connections that come with a 

growing economy like Florida's. 

Q Have you performed any analyses, and can you give us 

any specific numbers as to the quantity of that kind of make-up 

work that was not performed in 2004 and must be performed in 

2 0 0 5 ?  

A I believe some of the subsequent witnesses may be 

able to give you specifics on that. 

Q Beg your pardon? 

A I said I believe some of the subsequent witnesses may 

be able to give you specifics on that. I don't have it in 

front of me. 

Q You don't have it? Do you think there is such an 

analysis available? 

A I believe we understand the extent of new customer 

connect catch up that needed to be done, yes. 

Q Well, all I'm trying to get at is Mr. Sasso mentioned 

it in his opening statement and you have mentioned it that 

there is a lot of backup work that must be completed. And then 

we also have the fact that the $366 million that is claimed in 

this case is an estimate of past and future work, and I was 

just trying to see if you could compartmentalize some of those 

ordinary expenses that weren't performed that have to be 

performed in the future and give us a number for that? 
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A Yes. I'm sorry, I can't, as I sit here, do that 

quantitatively. Qualitatively I can say that the nature of the 

work that we were faced with as we have already discussed is 

new customer connects. And, again, that is more than a meter. 

That is construction of the system necessary to deliver that 

power. But also preventive and predictive maintenance work. 

Every day we are out there inspecting, treating, bracing poles, 

doing production related tree trimming that maintains normal 

levels of reliability. Transformer inspections, repairs, and 

replacements. With a system this large, that is a daily set of 

tasks that has to run on a sequence, and if you fall behind you 

have to catch it up. 

Q And for your distribution system where most of the 

costs occurred, when you brought in all of those extra crews 

and your crews went out and trimmed a lot of trees, that 

relieved you from the responsibility of having to do it in 

2005, didn't it? 

A No, it didn't. I wish it were so. The nature of 

damage that you see during storms does not at all relieve you 

of what you have to do in the normal course of business to 

maintain system reliability. Oftentimes the pole that has come 

down because a tree outside the right-of-way took it down could 

be a brand new pole. As a matter of fact, you may have had to 

replace that pole more than once during the storms because of 

Ithe conditions. 
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So that the nature of the damage that you sustain 

during these hurricanes really does not relieve you of any of 

your normal maintenance work. Oftentimes we find that it, in 

fact, creates incipient damage in the system that we don't 

discover until later, so it, in fact, increases your routine 

maintenance and replacement work scope. 

Q Did you put up a lot of brand new poles and a lot of 

brand new pots on those poles, those transformers? 

A Where we had poles down we replaced them. I believe 

we replaced 7/lOths of one percent of the poles on our system 

as an example. So that in terms of the maintenance work we are 

talking about that leaves an awfully large population of poles 

that were not touched. 

Q Are those temporary poles or permanent poles? 

A They could be either. Oftentimes we would replace 

them with a permanent pole, and in cases where we needed to 

make a temporary repair to restore service more quickly, we did 

that and we would subsequently come back and have to redo that 

with a permanent repair. 

MR. McWHIRTER: That's all the questions I have. 

Thank you, Mr. Lyash. 

CHAIRMAN BAEZ: Mr. Wright is not here. 

Mr. Twomey. 

MR. TWOMEY: Yes, sir, Mr. Chairman, I think I just 

have a couple. 
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CROSS EXAMINATION 

3Y MR. TWOMEY: 

Q I would ask you to look at Page 12 of your testimony, 

Line 13. Speaking to the money that you want to get through 

;he two-year surcharge you want the Commission to approve for 

recovery from your customers, you say at Line 13, "We will not 

nake a profit for the amount recovered under our two-year 

?roposal." Do you see that? 

A 

Q 

A 

Yes, I do. 

Where do you think that money is going to go? 

I don't understand the question. 

Q I mean, if it is not going to go to profit, where is 

it going to go? 

A I think the intent of the statement is that we spent 

:hese monies directly in recovery from the storm and so we are 

Looking for recovery of the cost, not something that we are 

3oing to earn a profit on or earn in the long-term, it is a 

recovery of the expenditures made. 

Q Yes, sir. But I thought I heard you agree with M s .  

lhristensen that, for example, if you had a lineman that 

:ypically worked eight hours a day and that line individual, 

ierson, whatever they are called now had eight hours a day of 

salary built into your O&M budget covered by your rates, I 

rnderstand that that person was dedicated to storm recovery, 

IOU want to have not only the overtime that person worked, but 
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the base eight hours charged to storm recovery, correct? 

A Yes. And I think your point is based on the notion, 

once again, that the eight hours worth of work that the lineman 

would have otherwise done somehow evaporates, and I think that 

premise is incorrect. 

Q Have you lined out in anyplace where all those base 

salaries are going to be expended in overtime later in the next 

six months or have already? 

A We have an entire family of programs that we apply to 

the system to maintain it. The example we discussed a little 

bit earlier was poles, and so we would essentially implement 

the program as originally laid out using the labor that is 

necessary to implement that program. So, you know, in response 

respond your question, we have a clear scope of work and we 

have clear programs and plans to execute it and we will do 

that. 

Q Yes, sir, but let me ask you more specifically. Has 

your company in this case provided an exhibit that shows where 

specifically it is going to expense all of those base hours on 

makeup work in the future? 

A I don't know. I don't know if we have provided that 

exhibit. 

Q And wouldn't you agree with me that if you don't 

identify the base dollars that have to be expended in makeup 

work that will necessarily go to profit? 
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A Could you repeat that? 

Q Yes, sir, I will try. You have got built into your 

mdget let's say for the month of July, so many dollars for a 

Lineperson's eight hour day. A hurricane comes. That day they 

aork a 16 hour day, eight hours base, and eight hours of 

xertime. Instead of incrementally just charging the customers 

Eor the overtime, which is what the bulk of the customer 

representatives here want to see you do, you want to charge 

mertime plus the base eight hours, correct? 

A The direct costs associated with the storm, yes. 

Q Yes, sir. You are telling me, if I hear you, that 

3ase eight hours, the dollars that are built into base rates, 

3ren't going to be extra to the company because you are going 

zo expend it someplace else in doing work that has to be made 

~ p ,  correct? 

A Yes, and I think that is what the customers and the 

Public Service Commission expect, that we will catch those 

?rograms up, we will maintain our level of reliability and 

iustomer service and not just allow that work to go undone. 

Q Yes, sir. And I asked you if you or the company has 

?rovided an exhibit that shows where each and every one of 

those base dollars that is going to be expended in making up 

dork, and I think your answer was you didn't know whether it 

had or not, correct? 

A Correct. 
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Q And my question was don't you agree with me that if 

le can find where the dollars aren't identified to be spent in 

iakeup work, that they necessarily have to go to profit? 

A Well, I think the line of questioning that we are 

mgaged in here also sort of ignores the fact that the recovery 

ipproach that we are suggesting here is to charge direct cost 

ind then to recover direct cost as opposed to going through an 

:xtended process that looks at revenues and expenses and gives 

)erhaps a more complete but very difficult characterization of 

:he impact. So that, you know, the one issue is the 

iouble-dipping that has been mentioned, and I don't believe 

:hat is the case. But the second issue I think has to do with 

;he process that we believe is in place for the storm 

:ost-recovery and how all those pieces come together. So I'm 

lot convinced that picking this one item gives you a meaningful 

result. 

Q Did you understand my last question? 

A Yes, I did, and I believe I am answering it. 

Q Well, are you capable of answering it yes or no? 

A I am certainly capable - -  

MR. WALLS: I am going to object as argumentative. 

MR. TWOMEY: Mr. Chairman - -  

THE WITNESS: If your question is that - -  

CHAIRMAN BAEZ: Hold on, Mr. Twomey. And maybe I 

should have laid out the ground rules, Mr. Lyash. I don't 
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recall you testifying before the Commission before, but if you 

can start your answers yes or no. 

THE WITNESS: Okay. 

CHAIRMAN BAEZ: And I am certain you are going to get 

questions that you can do that, but where you do go and then 

you can elaborate on your answers. We will try that one again. 

BY MR. TWOMEY: 

Q Again, the tail end of the question, if the company 

zannot identify specifically where the base dollars in your 

budget for salaries, for example, is going to be spent in 

nakeup work, don't you agree with me that it necessarily has to 

3 0  to profit? 

A Yes. 

MR. TWOMEY: Thank you. That's all I had, Mr. 

:hairman. 

CHAIRMAN BAEZ: Staff? 

MS. RODAN: Staff has no questions. 

CHAIRMAN BAEZ: Commissioners, do you have questions? 

'ommissioner Deason, do you have a question? 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: I have a question concerning 

:he so-called makeup work. Is that a term that you would 

>ccept, makeup work, or how do you define - -  I'm talking about 

IOU indicate in your testimony there is a certain amount of 

vork that could not be performed during the restoration efforts 

aecause obviously restoration was the primary focus and some of 
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:he more normal routine maintenance or whatever gets deferred, 

is that correct? 

THE WITNESS: That is correct. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: And I will just refer to that 

3s makeup work, is that fine? 

THE WITNESS: That's fine. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Is all the makeup work done now 

2r is that something that is continuing to be done? 

THE WITNESS: It is continuing. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Is that makeup work being done 

L,,rough normal work force efforts or is it being done through 

mer t ime ? 

THE WITNESS: Primarily overtime and contractor 

support. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: And that information has not 

3een provided to the Commission? 

THE WITNESS: The information has been provided. It 

nas been requested in discovery. We were asked in discovery to 

identify projects of greater than 100,000 and greater than 

20,000 that were left undone. We have done that. Mr. Wimberly 

nas also included in his testimony the categories of makeup 

sork that need to be done, and his rebuttal testimony includes 

that that is going to cost the company over $ 2 5  million to do, 

30 the evidence does exist. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
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Commissioners, any other questions? 

MR. WALLS: I will try to be brief. 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

3Y MR. WALLS: 

Q Mr. Lyash, you have said this a couple of times, but 

just to be clear, when you have an employee who comes in to 

vork on a day that there is a hurricane that hits, and he is 

reassigned to do work on the hurricane restoration, does the 

vork he was supposed to do that day go away? 

A No, it does not. 

Q And could you explain generally the nature of the 

;ypes of makeup work that you are aware of within the company 

;hat has to be done and has been done over the past few months? 

A Uh-huh, yes. With an asset this extensive, we have 

just a whole family of programs that go at corrective and 

3reventive maintenance. As an example, what we discussed was 

the poles. We inspect, we chemically treat, we brace, and we 

replace poles on an ongoing basis. And that is targeted at 

naintaining system reliability. That same type of program 

Mould apply to pole-top transformers, pad-mounted transformers, 

zapacitor banks, et cetera. So, that maintenance work. There 

is also right-of-way maintenance work; mowing, herbicide, 

production related tree trimming that has to be implemented, 

mce again, to maintain the system. And then lastly, 
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nfrastructure additions that are needed to support new 

Nonnects in terms of commercial, industrial, or residential 

.ccount s . 

Q And, Mr. Lyash, it has been suggested that the 

turricane work that was done, such as putting up new poles and 

tew lines, displaces PF's maintenance work, is that true? 

A No, I don't believe that to be the case. 

Q And can you explain, give some examine of why it 

Jould not displace your maintenance programs? 

A As I said earlier, the nature of this hurricane 

3amage doesn't pick on components that are at the end of their 

-ife. It is related to tornados that are spun off during the 

iurricane, wind loadings on components beyond their design, 

Irees outside the right-of-way that become an impact component 

;o that the damage really doesn't fit with or provide you much 

:redit toward your routine maintenance of the system. 

Q And by the way, Mr. Lyash, where were you last 

?riday? 

A Last Friday I was out on Treasure Island with a line 

Zrew rebuilding a feeder associated with some work that is 

going on out there. 

Q And how long had that crew been working? 

A Pardon me? 

Q What type of hours was that crew putting in? 

A They are currently on - -  that particular crew is. 
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zurrently working a minimum of six days a week, ten hours a 

Q 

A 

complete. 

And why are they on that schedule? 

Because of the backlog of work that we have got to 

Q And, Mr. Lyash, will Progress Energy FIorida spenc 

more and has it spent more to complete this backlog of work 

than it would have if the hurricanes had not occurred? 

A Yes. Certainly, because for the reason that you 

might imply from that crew schedule, you know, at six tens we 

are 50 percent overtime at a premium price, and we have got to 

supplement that work force with contract work force, as well. 

Q And, Mr. Lyash, you were asked some questions about 

the types of charges that have been incurred by the company 

during the hurricane restoration process, and you were in 

particular asked about your salary that was charged to the 

storm costs. 

What were you doing during the storm? 

A I was out on the system either with our work crews or 

with dealing with the EOC's elected officials, customers 

resolving - -  understand and resolving their hurricane related 

issues. 

Q And did the EOC's officials indicate that it was 

important for management to be present with them when they were 

trying to deal'with these hurricanes? 
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A Yes. I think it is critically important. They have 

got a heavy emergency response workload and for them knowing 

that one of the critical components, power, is going to be 

well-managed, and understanding first-hand how we are doing 

that, I think, is vital to them. That is what they have told 

me. 

Q And is that the type of work that you would have 

normally been doing had there been no hurricanes? 

A No, it is not. 

Q You were also asked questions about your direct 

testimony, in particular at Page 9, Line 11, regarding 

reinforcing key messages to customers. And Ms. Christensen 

didn't read the last part of that sentence. What were you 

reinforcing the messages to customers about in your direct 

testimony? 

A Well, we reinforced with customers the sorts of 

preparations they ought to do to their home to make them safe 

from an electrical power point of view, what sorts of damage 

they might have to their home that they should look for, and 

for which they need to gauge a licensed electrician to repair 

so that it can expedite their return to service. Also 

information both general and specific about their restoration 

schedule so that they can plan their lives around that. 

Q And you were asked whether you had normally budgeted 

for communications.t Can you describe the level of 
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communications that took place during the 2004 hurricane 

season? 

A Oh, just extraordinary. We had communication centers 

set up around the system that were just constantly engaged with 

the press to put out information, with the EOCs, with elected 

officials to make sure that the information was current. 

Q And is that the type of level of communication that 

ivas contemplated in your budget? 

A No, certainly not. 

MR. WALLS: I have no further questions. 

CHAIRMAN BAEZ: Exhibits. 

MR. WALLS: Yes. We would move in Mr. Lyash's 

3xhibits which have been identified. 

CHAIRMAN BAEZ: 

MR. WALLS: Yes. 

CHAIRMAN BAEZ: Without objection, show Exhibits 7 

And I am showing only 7 and 8, right? 

m d  8 moved into the record. 

(Exhibit 7 and 8 admitted into the record.) 

CHAIRMAN BAEZ: Thank you, Mr. Lyash. You are 

2xcused. 

Next witness. 

MR. WALLS: At this time we would call Mr. McDonald. 

DAVID McDONALD 

ras called as a witness on behalf of Progress Energy Florida, 

ind having been duly sworn, testified as follows: 
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DIRECT EXAMINATION 

IY MR. WALLS: 

Q Mr. McDonald, will you please introduce yourself to 

he Commission and provide your address? 

A My name is David McDonald. My address is 1486 72nd 

Lvenue Northeast, St. Petersburg, Florida 33702. 

Q And, Mr. McDonald, have you already been sworn in as 

L witness? 

A Yes, I have. 

Q Who do you work for and what is your position? 

A I work for Progress Energy Florida. I am the 

)irector of Distribution Asset Management. 

Q And have you filed prefiled direct testimony and 

!xhibits in this proceeding? 

A Yes, I have. 

Q And do you have those in front of you? 

A Yes, I do. 

Q Do you have any changes to make to your prefiled 

.estimony and exhibits at this time? 

A No, I do not. 

Q If I asked you the same questions in your prefiled 

.estimony today, would you give the same answers that are in 

Tour prefiled testimony? 

A Yes, I would. 

MR. WALLS: We request that the prefiled testimony of 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

2 0  

21 

22 

2 3  

2 4  

2 5  

109 

r. McDonald be moved into evidence as if it was read in the 

ecord. 

CHAIRMAN BAEZ: Without objection show the direct 

estimony of Witness McDonald entered into the record as though 

ead. 
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IN RE: PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA, INC.3 PETITION 
FOR APPROVAL OF STORM COST RECOVERY CLAUSE FOR 

EXTRAORDINARY EXPENDITURES RELATED TO HURRICANES 
CHARLEY, FRANCES, JEANNE, AND IVAN. 

DIRECT TESTIMONY OF DAVID MCDONALD 

I. INTRODUCTION AND QUALIFICATIONS 

Please state your name, employer, and business address. 

My name is David McDonald. I am employed by Progress Energy Florida, Inc. 

(“PEF” or the “Company”). My business address is 100 Central Avenue, St. 

Petersburg, Florida. 

Please tell us your position with Progress Energy Florida, Inc., and describe 

your duties and responsibilities in that position. 

I am the Director of Distribution Asset Management in PEF’s Energy Delivery 

Business Operations. I direct and manage the engineering personnel and program 

coordinators responsible for engineering complex relocation and infrastructure 

expansion work requests for the entire PEF system. 

I am also the Storm Coordinator for PEF’s distribution system. Sarah Rogers 

is the Company’s Transmission System Coordinator, which is the Storm Coordinator 

position for transmission, and she will be providing testimony in this proceeding 

describing the Company’s transmission storm plan and the execution of that plan for 

Hurricanes Charley, Frances, Ivan, and Jeanne. My testimony describes the 
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A. 

Company’s storm plan for its distribution system and how it was executed during the 

extraordinary circumstances of four back-to-back hurricanes in August and 

September 2004. 

Please summarize your educational background and employment experience. 

I have a Bachelor of Science in Electrical Engineering from the University of 

Kentucky in 1984. I am PEF’s Director of Distribution Asset Management and Storm 

Coordinator. I personally participated in the discussions reviewing the storm plan 

following each storm to improve the plan for subsequent storms should they strike 

PEF’s service territory. 

Prior to assuming my current roles for PEF, I was the Distribution Control 

Center Director, which focused on the operation of the distribution system grid and 

the coordination of PEF’s nineteen (1 9) operating centers throughout its service 

territory. Earlier, I served as a Distribution Region General Manager for PEF and a 

Distribution Region Engineering Supervisor for Progress Energy in the Carolinas. 

Prior to joining Progress Energy in 1998, I held a number of supervisory and 

management positions for Florida Power & Light Company. 

11. PURPOSE AND SUMMARY OF TESTIMONY 

What is the purpose of your testimony in this proceeding? 

I am testifying on behalf of PEF in support of recovery of the Company’s storm- 

related costs due to Hurricanes Charley, Frances, Ivan, and Jeanne. The total storm- 

related costs to the Company are approximately $366 million. I will discuss the 
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operation of the storm plan, which commences well before the storm strikes to 

prepare for its impact, continues through the storm as the Company responds to and 

recovers from the storm damage, and ends with the Company’s attempts to identify 

and correct further storm damage that was not addressed during the restoration 

process but must be addressed to restore the distribution system as much as possible 

to its pre-storm condition. I will include the Company’s goals and priorities as it 

prepares for, responds to, and recovers from the storm’s impact on its distribution 

system. 

I will also take each hurricane in the order that the four hurricanes struck 

PEF’s service territory and describe the storm’s intensity, path of destruction, and the 

damage to PEF’s facilities in its service territory caused by each storm. I will further 

describe the Company’s successfbl efforts at implementing its plan to respond to the 

storms and, ultimately, to restore electric service to its customers. 

Are you sponsoring any exhibits to your testimony? 

Yes. I am sponsoring the following exhibits to my testimony: 

DM-1 PEF’s Distribution Storm Plan. 

DM-2 

DM-3 

DM-4 

Sample ETR’s for Hurricane Frances. 

Example of Daily Goals for Each Hurricane. 

Wind Field Map of Hurricane Charley’s Impact on PEF’s Service 

Territory. 

Wind Field Map of Hurricane Frances’ Impact on PEF’s Service DM-5 

Territory. 
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DM-6 Wind Field Map of Hurricane Ivan’s Impact on PEF’s Service 

DM-7 

Territory. 

Wind Field Map of Hurricane Jeanne’s Impact on PEF’s Service 

Territory. 

Composite Exhibit of Pictures of Distribution Storm Damage. DM-8 

Each of these exhibits was prepared under my direction, and each is true and accurate. 

Please summarize your testimony. 

The Company has a storm plan with centralized control of overall mobilization, 

staging of crews, logistics support, and damage assessment. The plan defines key 

roles and responsibilities of those who work in the storm center as well as those in 

support roles. Our organizational structure and storm response plans allow our local 

field offices to focus entirely on restoration of service and customer service. 

The plan M e r  represents the best practices of PEF and its sister company in the 

Carolinas and, thus, incorporates the know-how gained in the Carolinas as a result of 

more recent experience with hurricanes and ice storms there. The Company also 

works on and drills on the plan in advance of storm season. As the storm season 

approaches, implementation of the plan commences well before the impact of major 

storms are felt on PEF’s service territory to adequately prepare to respond to them. 

Advanced computer modeling tools are employed to predict the storm path, intensity 

and damage in conjunction with an outside weather service. This is constantly 

updated as the storm draws closer to have the most up-to-date information possible. 

In advance of the storm, resource needs are identified and commitments are obtained, 
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logistical needs are planned and arrangements made, and material and equipment are 

obtained and readied to be deployed. All of this is accomplished in order to 

commence safe storm restoration efforts as soon as the storm passes. 

Storm restoration begins with pre-established priority restoration work and 

damage assessment. The priorities are established as a cooperative effort with state 

and local government emergency relief personnel and to restore electric power to 

critical customers and the most customers as soon as possible. The damage 

assessment provides the information necessary to immediately direct crews to the 

areas that are in need of restoration work. This process is continued until all 

customers have been restored. 

Our storm plan does not end with our restoration efforts. The goal of 

restoration is to get customers back in service as quickly as possible. After that is 

accomplished, we conduct sweeps of our system to identify storm damage that did not 

need to be addressed in order to restore service but nevertheless must be addressed to 

put the distribution system back in the condition it was in prior to the storms. 

The impacts of Hurricanes Charley, Frances, Ivan, and Jeanne were 

devastating to customers in PEF’s service territory. They presented unique 

challenges as PEF implemented its storm plan to prepare for, respond to, and recover 

from the four back-to-back hurricanes. Lessons were learned and incorporated into 

the storm plan as we moved from storm to storm. The greatest lesson learned, 

though, is that our storm plan works. It proved to be an effective and efficient tool to 

restore customer service as quickly as possible following the storms. 
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111. THE COMPANY’S STORM PLAN 

Please provide a summary of PEF’s storm plan and restoration process. 

Our restoration efforts from a hurricane or major storm begin months before the start 

of the storm season. We have developed a very comprehensive storm plan that 

incorporates the best practices from the restoration experiences of Progress Energy 

Carolinas, Inc. (“PEC”), PEF, and other industry leaders. This storm plan addresses 

three different phases of storm restoration response, varying response levels of our 

storm restoration model, and various roles that are necessary to support the storm 

restoration effort and effectively communicate to our customers the status of our 

efforts. 

The different phases include pre-storm preparation, outage restoration, and 

distribution system restoration. Our pre-storm preparation begins as early as 120 

hours prior to projected landfall of the hurricane, and includes damage estimation, 

required resource supplementation, and supporting logistic needs. The outage 

restoration phase includes all the activities following the impact of the storm that 

restore service to all those customers capable of receiving it. The system restoration 

phase is where we restore our electrical infrastructure to its pre-hurricane condition. 

There are four distinct levels of restoration response fiom a Level I model to a 

Level IV model. The difference in the response levels is driven by changes in the 

management of the restoration resources and the type of resources employed for the 

restoration. These varying levels determine the type of restoration effort that we must 

undertake to efficiently restore our system. The determination of the restoration level 

to establish is made by the storm management team as a result of modeling and 
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reviewing the damage assessment information. A level I response is our typical daily 

response under normal operating conditions. Using our outage management system 

as the damage assessment tool, and our own troublemen as our primary restoration 

resource, we restore outages under normal operating conditions based upon the 

hierarchy of the most customers affected by the interrupted device. Our highest level 

and most complex restoration process is our level IV response. This level is used 

when we encounter the most severe levels of devastation. It requires teams of 

damage assessors to identify and quantify the extent of damage and an extensive 

amount of off-system supplemental resources to aid in the restoration efforts. 

Variations between a level I restoration and a level IV restoration are 

determined by the source of restoration resources, whether the Company is relying on 

resources from the same region where the work must be done, other regions of the 

Company, or outside resources, and who is managing those resources during the 

restoration process. The flexibility of the storm plan is that, for any given storm 

restoration effort, we may have a region that is operating within the Level IV model 

while another region is operating within a Level I model. This allows regions within 

the Company operating at a lower restoration level to release available resources for 

restoration work in regions operating at a higher restoration level. 

Within the storm plan are a multitude of roles that facilitate an efficient 

restoration process. These roles are focused along four lines: (1) overall storm 

response; (2) operational response; (3) support response; and (4) customer response. 

The overall response deals with those functions that are responsible for managing all 

aspects of our restoration response. The operational response deals with those 
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functions that are focused on the actual restoration efforts. The support response 

concerns those functions that provide the necessary materials, equipment, supplies, 

and logistics to support the other functions. The customer response is focused on 

providing accurate and timely information to all of our customers. 

Within each of these functional areas, there are structured processes and well- 

defined roles for all participants. The participants under the storm plan include PEF, 

PEC, and outside resources, all of whom may be called on to successfully execute the 

restoration efforts. The actual administration and management of the storm plan, 

however, is limited to PEF personnel, with the other resources providing support and 

supplemental roles. 

The participants are assigned roles under the storm plan that may differ from 

their daily responsibilities under normal operation conditions and, as a result, it is 

imperative that they are effectively trained. This training is normally completed in 

the second quarter of each year throughout the system and within each of the 

functional areas of responsibility. To further ensure our storm preparedness, we 

conduct storm readiness drills in order to test the effectiveness of the training and the 

employee’s ability to execute their assigned storm role. This drilling is completed in 

the month of May. Furthermore, to ensure that our storm restoration plan is 

coordinated with the state-wide storm preparedness, we participate in the state 

Emergency Operations Centers (“EOC”) coordinated storm drill conducted each May 

in Tallahassee. 

A critical component of our storm plan is the way in which we communicate 

the status of our efforts within the three restoration phases to our customers. It is 
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imperative that we communicate this status frequently to state and local governments, 

the Florida Public Service Commission staff, and to our customer base, including our 

retail commercial, industrial, governmental, residential and wholesale customers. All 

of these constituencies are dependent upon this information to make critical decisions 

of their own and, hence, the timeliness and accuracy of our status reports are critical. 

A copy of our distribution storm plan is included as Exhibit - (DM-1) to my 

testimony. 
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9 IV. IMPLEMENTATION OF STORM PLAN: PRE-STORM PREPARATION 

10 Q. 

11 A. 

12 

13 

When and how do you begin your preparations for a major storm? 

As part of our preparation, we continually monitor the weather information and when 

a tropical weather condition is identified that has the potential of impacting our 

territory within the next 120 hours, we initiate our pre-storm preparations. Our first 

focus is to initiate a dialogue with our weather service provider, WSI, so that we can 

ascertain more detailed weather information. 

We are interested in determining the date, time, and strength of the hurricane 

when it impacts our system, the path of the storm, the size and strength of the wind 

fields, the associated amount of precipitation, when the wind exceeds and falls below 

35 mph, and the strength of the gusts. Although this information is very sketchy at 

the 120-hour mark, we use what we have in a storm modeling tool to predict the 

amount of damage to our system, where that damage will likely occur, and the 

amount of resources required for restoring the expected outages. More specifically, 

the tool estimates the number of personnel required, such as linemen, tree trimmers, 
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and damage assessors. This gives us an estimate of the type of restoration effort that 

is before us. 

Once that model provides us the information, we conduct a system storm call 

that includes the management team representing the four functional areas (overall 

storm response, operational response, support response, and customer response) of 

our storm response. This call is to initiate those activities that are to be completed 

based upon the 120-hour information. At this point the efforts are more focused upon 

notifications to our customers and employees of a potential impact and the beginning 

of our storm readiness activities and our initial efforts to procure resources. We 

duplicate this process at the 96-, 72-, 48-, and 24-hour marks prior to system impact 

from the storm. At each successive 24- hour interval, with more and improved input 

data, the model refines each of the attributes that were identified at the 120-hour 

period. 

What do you do with the information from your predictive storm models? 

Once we have estimated the amount of resources required, the extent each region 

within our territory will be impacted, and where the damage is expected to occur, 

several subsequent processes begin in unison. First, our Resource Management 

function contacts the southeastern Electric Exchange ("SEE") in an effort to secure 

commitments fi-om the participating companies to provide for our line and tree 

manpower resource requirements. This is facilitated by an existing mutual assistance 

agreement between all participating utilities. If that call is not successful in securing 

the requisite commitments, then the Resource Management h c t i o n  contacts other 
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utilities and contracting firms beyond the SEE. For Hurricane Jeanne, for example, 

we were able to secure a very limited amount of manpower commitments from the 

SEE, which required us to contact firms throughout the 48 continental states. As a 

result, we had to take extraordinary measures, including flying in resources from 

California to help in that restoration effort. Both of these manpower sources provide 

us with our non-native storm restoration crews. Non-native crews do not include PEF 

employees or PEF’s regular, retained contract crews (both of whom comprise our 

native restoration crews). 

The Resource Management function continues to contact companies until we 

reach the required level of resource commitments predicted by our storm model. 

Depending on the time and location of the storm’s expected impact, a decision is 

made concerning when committed crews are activated, paid to be mobilized, and sent 

to an off-site resource. To expedite our restoration efforts, we want to mobilize 

resources prior to a hurricane impacting our service territory whenever possible. This 

has allowed us to have non-native crews mobilized from mustering sites to the 

restoration areas within 6 hours after the storm passes. To do this, we mobilize crews 

to system mustering sites located along Interstates 75,4 & 95. The sites ultimately 

used depend upon the path of the storm, as we are extremely concerned about the 

safety of all resources involved in our restoration efforts. The number of crews 

mobilized, and where they are mustered, greatly depends on the accuracy of the 

forecast. A shift in resources like the one required when Hurricane Charley abruptly 

changed course can significantly impact our plans and result in higher mobilization 

costs. 
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Concurrent with acquiring resource commitments or the mobilization of 

resources, our Staging & Logistics function begins to establish mustering sites and 

regional staging areas and secures anticipated lodging needs. The use of mustering 

sites allows us to orient non-native crews to our safety policies, our technical 

specifications, and to prepare them for reassignment to a staging area. At these sites 

we have truck parking, refueling, meals, and lodging. These site resources must be 

put in place prior to the arrival of the first mobilized crew resource, which means that 

the Staging & Logistics teams are making arrangements to provide these 

accommodations based upon the predictive model. 

The regional staging sites are also being established during this same time 

kame. Based upon the predictive model and its forecast of damage and personnel 

required for that region, the Operational Management team, the System Storm team 

and the Staging & Logistics team identifl the highest priority staging sites. Once 

identified, the establishment of that site begins, and the anticipated number of rooms 

for our lodging needs are secured. To establish both types of sites (mustering & 

staging), it is imperative that we forecast the number of rooms needed and secure 

those rooms expeditiously. The productivity of the storm restoration personnel can 

be greatly impacted if we do not have lodging facilities within a short distance of the 

two types of sites. The distribution storm response team performs these logistics and 

staging functions for Transmission as well to reduce storm administrative costs and 

share resources and staging areas where possible. 
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What other planning activities are undertaken prior to the arrival of the storm? 

As I mentioned above, it is imperative that we repeatedly communicate to our entire 

customer base to ensure that they understand the status of our hurricane restoration 

preparations. We communicate through several media (print, radio, and television) to 

reach as many customers as possible to ensure that they have information about our 

restoration response. For example, we repeatedly alert them to the potential dangers 

of hurricanes, the impact of the storms on our facilities, the need to contact us and 

report their outage, and the safety precautions they need to take such as the use of 

generators. 

In addition, we communicate extensively with our local and state EOCs. PEF 

has EOC representatives participate in a majority of the major storm pre-landfall 

briefings held by the local EOCs. Priority shelters are the primary pre-landfall 

discussion issues and they are identified the day before landfall is expected. The 

shelters, along with other local critical functions, are also prioritized in these 

briefings. 

What do you do as the storm strikes PEF’s service territory? 

When the storm force winds commence in PEF’s service territory, the distribution 

storm center is in constant communication with the Energy Control Center (“ECC”) 

and the transmission storm center. The ECC gives both storm centers a blow-by- 

blow description of what transmission lines and substations are dropping out of 

service as the storm passes, giving us our first real-time assessment of the location of 

the storm damage. This information flow continues throughout the storm, through 
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daily conference calls, and ECC and the distribution and transmission storm centers 

jointly establish restoration priorities and coordinate the distribution and transmission 

restoration efforts. Additionally, as soon as the storm winds drop below 35 miles per 

hour, the distribution storm center begins to send out its damage assessment teams to 

get a better understanding of the damage to the distribution system. 

IMPLEMENTATION OF THE STORM PLAN: OUTAGE RESTORATION 

What is the first thing you do after the storm passes? 

Our initial response has three main components: (1) Governmental and EOC support 

and response; (2) feeder isolation and restoration efforts; and (3) statistical damage 

assessment. These three components of our storm restoration efforts are the highest 

priority to enable the local and state governments to respond to the storm’s impact 

and do their jobs, to restore the highest priority customers first, and to estimate the 

amount of storm damage actually incurred by our distribution system. As a result of 

storm damage to our facilities, local government personnel may encounter situations, 

or they are contacted about situations that require an immediate response from our 

line personnel. We assign representatives to each region to communicate with local 

governmental officials and agencies and to man the EOCs. PEF EOC representatives 

are assigned several line personnel to use as needed for emergency restoration efforts. 

As the local governments and EOCs encounter issues that require our 

immediate attention, we can promptly respond. These issues may involve, for 

example, a downed power line with police personnel standing by at the site. By 

having our personnel assigned to the EOC we can facilitate communication with the 
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various governmental agencies, such as fire departments also represented at the 

EOCs, to quickly respond to the site, take care of the downed line, and allow the 

government agency staff to pursue other critical assignments. 

The Isolate and Restore process is a method by which we restore service and 

catalogue storm damage for further repair. This process is intended to quickly restore 

the feeder backbone through the operation of switches only, inventory sections of the 

feeder that we are not able to immediately restore, and identify what devices off the 

feeder are not in service. We begin planning for this Isolate and Restore effort prior 

to the storm season when each of the local management teams prioritize the order of 

restoration for each of the feeders within their jurisdiction. They prioritize the feeders 

using three criteria to determine the critical feeders that must be first restored. 

Priority one feeders have facilities such as water treatment plants, nuclear sirens, 

hospitals, and emergency shelters connected to them. Priority two feeders are 

connected to food distribution centers, law enforcement, firehescue stations, EOCs, 

and other services that are crucial to the health, safety, and welfare of the general 

public. Priority three feeders are all other feeders. 

After the storm passes, PEF employees are assigned the highest priority 

feeders that are out of service. We assign two line personnel per feeder and they are 

responsible for patrolling from the substation to the end of the feeder. Upon 

completing this patrol, we restore as much of the feeder backbone as possible, we 

inventory the interrupted devices and they are used to update our outage numbers, and 

we catalogue any feeder work that can be assigned to supplemental forces. 

15 
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Concurrent with these two activities we assess five percent (5%) of our total 

facilities to validate the damage and associated resources that were predicted by the 

model and to provide the operations management more information for determining 

the best restoration methodology. As part of our pre-storm season preparation, we 

identify segments of feeders and their associated branch lines in each area served by 

an operations center that are representative of the overall network of feeders and 

branch lines for the local area. These representative distribution line segments are 

assigned to damage assessment teams, who are responsible for a pole-by-pole survey 

of those representative segments, to inventory the extent of damage incurred and 

return that damage information to be entered in a database. Based upon the storm 

damage found in this representative sample, we extrapolate the amount of storm 

damage for the rest of the local distribution network and aggregate all local 

extrapolations to get a system-wide storm damage estimate. These estimates are used 

at the system level to validate resource needs and to aid in resource mobilization. 

16 Q. 

17 A. 

What do you do next to restore power to customers? 

At this juncture of our restoration efforts, we are beginning to mobilize outside 

resources to the local operating areas to include them in the storm restoration plan. 

To efficiently use this first wave of manpower resources, we assign them to the storm 

damage that was identified through our feeder Isolate and Restore process. This 

allows us to assign them to the highest priority work on the most critical components 
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22 of our distribution infrastructure. 
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Q. 

A. 

Prior to the arrival of the next wave of manpower resources and following the 

completion of the statistical damage assessment, we begin a detailed pole-by-pole 

assessment of all feeders that require it. Based upon the information collected from 

the statistical assessment, any aerial storm damage assessments using helicopters, 

information reported to our outage management system, and the knowledge of local 

management, the management team has the information it needs to determine what 

feeders require the detailed damage assessment. When the detailed assessment of a 

selected feeder is complete, the results of that effort are entered into a database and an 

associated work package is prepared for subsequent assignment to line or tree crew 

resources. 

This work package allows us to effectively communicate the scope of the 

work to be done and further assists us in managing productivity expectations of our 

line and tree crew resources. Additionally, the work package information assists local 

management in allocating resources and determining estimated time of restoration 

(ETRs). The ETR is based upon county or major areas within counties for 

communication to the customer and to the state and local governments. 

Do the Company’s ETRs ever change during the restoration? 

Yes, they do. We are continuously updating our ETRs during the restoration to keep 

up with the information we are collecting and evaluating on the extent and severity of 

the storm damage, the critical and priority restoration needs from ECC, state and local 

governments and EOCs, and the availability of resources. We will shift line and tree 

crews, equipment, and material when needed to address new priorities or to increase 
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productivity. We are constantly striving during the restoration to improve our ETRs 

and meet or exceed our own ETR goals. 

How do you wind down your restoration process? 

As we near the completion of storm restoration work within any part of our service 

territory we are beginning our demobilization efforts. We believe it is imperative that 

we use the most productive and cost effective resources during our restoration efforts. 

As a part of our demobilization efforts then, we survey local management to get their 

assessment on the productivity of the non-native line and tree personnel. Combining 

this information with the daily cost of the personnel, we start determining which 

crews should be released first. Obviously there are operational considerations that 

must be considered, but whenever prudent we demobilize resources based upon those 

considerations. 

VI. IMPLEMENTATION OF THE STORM PLAN: SYSTEM RESTORATION 

Q. What about after restoration of customers is complete. Is there anything else 

that must be done? 

A. Yes, the final phase of our hurricane response is the restoration of the system to its 

pre- hurricane status. When we are in our storm outage restoration phase, we intend to 

perform the minimum amount of work necessary to restore the hdamental  operating 

characteristics of our distribution infrastructure. For example, during the storm 

outage restoration phase, we may splint broken poles or cross arms, we do not restore 
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streetlights, capacitor banks and reclosers are returned to service only if immediately 

required, and animal mitigation hardware is not installed pursuant to standards. 

To return the distribution system to its previous state before the hurricane, 

however, we conduct electrical sweeps of the feeders and identify the issues that 

require mitigation. This sweep process is normally begun prior to completion of the 

storm outage restoration phase. Once this work is identified and compiled, we 

integrate it into our overall work plan for our post-restoration storm work. We 

anticipate completion of the remaining storm-related work identified in our sweeps by 

2”d quarter 2005. 

An additional system restoration effort that we conduct is a detailed sweep of 

our feeders to identify any storm damage to trees that was not mitigated during the 

storm restoration phase. This assessment is what we refer to as a “tree sweep.” We 

assign a lead and associated tree personnel to assess a feeder and its associated branch 

lines. They are responsible for identifying only trees or branches damaged by the 

storm and immediately mitigating any such damage. 

16 

17 VII. EVALUATING AND IMPROVING THE STORM PLAN 

I 18 Q. How do you measure the effectiveness of your storm planning and restoration 

19 process? 

20 A. Let’s start with how we assess our restoration effectiveness. One of the main 

measures that we use is the cumulative percentage of customers restored versus our 

projection of where we should be at the end of each day. Moving backward from our 

final ETR goals, we set milestones that must be achieved each day in order for us to 
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achieve our overall goal. We generate these milestones down to the operations center 

level based on the amount of storm damage on our system, the level of resources that 

we have at our disposal, and our own restoration history. This analysis tells us 

whether we are being as effective as we need to be and, if not, helps to highlight or 

correct any issues that may be impacting our performance. As an example, the ETR’s 

for Hurricane Frances is included as Exhibit - @M-2) to my testimony. 

Planning effectiveness is more difficult to measure. In one respect, we know 

that we do an effective job of forecasting since the actual storm damage and resource 

requirements closely matched our predictions in all cases. Much more important than 

this, however, effective planning really comes down to ensuring we have the 

processes in place that give us maximum flexibility. Due to the nature of these 

storms, we will never be able to predict the location and timing of storms precisely. It 

is more important that our planning process ensures we have the flexibly to adapt to 

inevitable changes in the location, timing, and intensity of storms as they arise. In our 

judgment, our planning process did in fact provide us with the needed flexibility to 

cope effectively even with this extraordinary hurricane season. 

Have you made any improvements to your storm planning and restoration 

process? 

Yes, we incorporate lessons learned every time we implement our storm plan. In fact, 

this process of continuous improvement is itself a critical part of our comprehensive 

storm plan. Indeed, our storm plan was adopted as best practices for the Company as 

a result of the experience of our sister company in the Carolinas with recent 
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hurricanes and ice storms. And, given the number of times we put this plan to the test 

this summer, it is no surprise that we have made several improvements to the plan as 

a result of our own experience. As a general rule, I believe we gained efficiency and 

effectiveness in several areas of our storm operations as we progressed from storm to 

storm. 

I would divide our lessons learned into two categories. First, we made several 

over-night changes based on what we were seeing each day. One example is the 

creation of a grading sheet for contract crews that allowed us to track and compare 

their cost and effectiveness. This tool proved useful in determining which resources 

to release or hold and which resources to contract for subsequent storms. On the 

other hand, some improvements were incorporated based on post-storm analysis and 

implemented in time for the next storm. For example, we found opportunities to 

improve the plan by increasing our efforts to communicate our daily goals within the 

company with each passing storm. We began a process of setting daily goals in areas 

such as safety, resource availability, and operations. These daily goals and a follow- 

up on the prior day’s goals were communicated every morning during our restoration 

efforts. An example of these daily goals would be shown on Exhibit OM-3) to 

my testimony. 

Likewise, we took advantage of an opportunity to increase our presence and 

therefore improve our communications with local governments and county 

emergency operations centers. By posting a company representative in each county 

EOC, we were able to improve the flow of communication, to improve our response 
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1 to specific issues that were monopolizing city and county resources, and to allow the 

cities and counties to be more efficient in their storm response activities. 

VIII. THE 2004 HURRICANE SEASON 

5 Q. Can you please describe your planning and response to Hurricane Charley and 

6 its impact on your system? 

8 

9 

10 

11 

7 A. Hurricane Charley posed several challenges to our planning and restoration efforts. 

The storm was projected to make landfall in the vicinity of Tampa Bay before it 

suddenly made a turn to the east and hit Punta Gorda in Charlotte County on August 

13,2004 with winds of 145 miles per hour. After gearing up personnel, materials, 

staging areas, rooms and related resources in the Tampa Bay area, we were forced to 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 
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quickly adapt to a more easterly storm path. These required but unpredictable 

changes in our storm preparation and response efforts, of course, had an impact on 

our storm costs. 

Hurricane Charley proceeded on a north to northeast path across Florida, 

traveling through much of PEF’s service territory, including the densely populated 

areas around Orlando, before leaving the state. 502,000 customers were left without 

electric service at the peak of Hurricane Charley’s impact on PEF’s service territory. 

This represents 32.7% of PEF’s total customers. As a result of Hurricane Charley, 

PEF experienced extensive damage to its distribution system and we frequently found 

ourselves in a position to rebuild rather than repair. PEF had to replace 667 miles of 

primary and secondary wire, replace 3,820 poles, and replace 1,880 overhead and 

underground transformers. During Hurricane Charley, PEF mobilized 3,623 line and 

22 



I 1 

I 2  

3 

4 
I 
I 5  

6 I 
7 

I 8  

9 I 
10 

I 11 

I l 2  
13 Q. 

14 

I 15 A. 

16 

I 17 

I 
19 

I 20 

22 I 

service personnel and 1,499 tree personnel in addition to its own personnel to ensure 

repairs were completed as efficiently as possible. A wind field map of Hurricane 

Charley’s impact on PEF’s service territory is included as Exhibit - (DM-4) to my 

testimony. 

Responding to a storm that left a significant impact on three out of our four 

regions stretched our internal resources to an extent never before seen during 

previous, more geographically compact storms. All customers that were able to 

receive power, however, were restored nine days after PEF started restoration work, 

even though we dealt with additional storm activity throughout our restoration effort. 

The restoration costs directly attributable to distribution as a result of Hurricane 

Charley are $108 million. 

Can you please describe your planning and response to Hurricane Frances and 

its impact on your system? 

Hurricane Frances presented a different set of challenges than Hurricane Charley. 

The storm made landfall between Fort Pierce and West Palm Beach on September 4, 

2004 with sustained winds of 105 miles per hour. Over the next several days, 

Hurricane Frances crossed over Florida and entered the Gulf of Mexico north of 

Tampa in PEF’s service territory. Strong winds with gusts near 100 miles per hour 

affected PEF’s service territory for almost a full day. Throughout this time, we were 

forced to hold arriving crews in mustering sites until conditions were safe to begin 

restoration. By the time the storm left our territory, it had dumped 6 to 12 inches of 
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rain with some areas receiving considerably more rain. In several cases, flooding 

increased the degree of difficulty for our restoration crews. 

The impact of Hurricane Frances was widespread, reaching 30 of the 35 

counties that PEF serves. 832,898 PEF customers lost power from Hurricane Frances 

during the course of the storm. This represents 54.4% of PEF’s total number of 

customers. A wind field map of Hurricane Frances’ impact on PEF’s service territory 

is included as Exhibit - (DM-5) to my testimony. 

We used nearly 500 miles of primary and secondary wire, replaced 2,800 

distribution poles, and replaced 1,560 overhead and underground transformers. Even 

more widespread than Hurricane Charley, Frances forced us to reach deep within our 

company to field storm support personnel. Beyond company personnel, PEF 

mobilized 2,819 system line and service personnel and 1,782 tree personnel to deal 

with the damage caused by Hurricane Frances. We were able to restore power to all 

customers who could receive it six days after commencing storm restoration work. 

The restoration costs directly attributable to distribution as a result of Hurricane 

Frances are $95.8 million. 

18 Q. Can you please describe your planning and response to Hurricane Ivan and its 

19 impact on your system? 

20 A. Hurricane Ivan was forecasted to make landfall in the Tampa Bay region. In the end, 

21 however, the storm went ashore near Gulf Shores, Alabama on September 16,2004 

22 

23 

with sustained winds of 130 miles per hour. PEF customers in Bay, Franklin, Gulf, 

Jefferson, and Wakulla counties in PEF’s service territory did, however, lose power 

24 
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from Hurricane Ivan. At its peak, 8,891 PEF customers were without power, or 0.6% 

of PEF’s total customers. A wind field map of Hurricane Ivan’s impact on PEF’s 

service territory is included as Exhibit - (DM-6) to my testimony. 

Although this storm did minimal damage to our system, it did force us to 

retain contract crews, lodging, and other resources at the ready until the risk of impact 

to our service territory diminished. Beyond PEF’s own personnel, we mobilized 300 

line and service personnel and 100 tree personnel to ensure repairs were completed as 

efficiently as possible. All customers who were able to receive power had their 

power restored in two days. The restoration costs directly attributable to distribution 

as a result of Hurricane Ivan are $3.7 million. 

Can you please describe your planning and response to Hurricane Jeanne and 

its impact on your system? 

In many respects, Hurricane Jeanne was similar to Hurricane Frances although 

quicker moving. Hurricane Jeanne made landfall near Stuart, Florida on September 

25,2004 with sustained winds of 120 miles per hour. It moved northwest across 

Florida and through PEF’s service territory and proceeded north out of Florida. 

Again, the impact on PEF’s service territory was widespread impacting customers in 

33 out of the 35 counties that PEF serves. At the hurricane’s peak impact on PEF’s 

service territory, 722,012 customers lost power, or 47% of PEF’s total number of 

customers. As a result of Jeanne, PEF installed 222 miles of primary and secondary 

wire, replaced 100 poles, and installed 570 transformers. A wind field map of 

1 5 4  
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Hurricane Jeanne’s impact on PEF’s service territory is included as Exhibit 

7) to my testimony. 

The fact that Hurricane Jeanne so closely followed Hurricane Ivan presented 

unique challenges for PEF. We had difficulty securing the level of resources that we 

would have liked. First, we were unable to rely on PEC personnel as they were 

grappling with Hurricane Ivan in their own service territory and unable to lend 

assistance in Florida. Second, utilities impacted by Ivan were continuing storm 

restoration and were reluctant to release resources for Jeanne. By bringing in crews 

and equipment from as far away as the West Coast, we were able to mobilize 2,622 

system line and service personnel and 1,065 tree personnel. Power was restored for 

all customers who could receive power five days after PEF commenced storm 

restoration work, beating our original goal by 2 days. The restoration costs directly 

attributable to Hurricane Jeanne are $64.3 million. 

IX. CONCLUSION 

Do you have an assessment of the Company’s implementation of its Storm Plan 

during the 2004 hurricane season? 

I believe the Company faced a monumental challenge as a result of the four back-to- 

back hurricanes and the storm plan proved to be an effective and efficient tool to 

achieve our goal of restoring customer service as safely and expeditiously as possible. 

Never before have we faced four major hurricanes in a single year, let alone a span of 

less than six weeks. The sequence of the storms, their intensity, storm path, and other 

characteristics presented unique challenges to the Company. The Company further 
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experienced extensive and widespread storm damage to its distribution system as a 

result of the four hurricanes. Illustrative of this are the pictures of distribution system 

damage included as Composite Exhibit - @M-8) to my testimony. Through it all, 

however, we found the storm plan processes worked. To be sure, we learned more 

about storm preparation and restoration as a result of the storms and quickly 

incorporated those lessons into our storm plan, but the storm plan proved to be 

invaluable to us in preparing for, responding to, and recovering from the storms. We 

proved the implementation of the storm plan works to meet our obligation to 

promptly restore electric service following each of these storms. 

Does this conclude your testimony? 

Yes. 
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BY MR. WALLS: 

Mr. McDonald, do you have a summary of your prefiled Q 

testimony? 

A Yes, I do. 

Q 

Commission? 

And will you please summarize your testimony f o r  the 

A Yes, I will. My name is David McDonald, and I am 

employed by Progress Energy Florida as the Director of 

Distribution Asset Management in PEF's energy delivery business 

3perations. 

listribution system. 

I am also the storm coordinator for the company's 

As the storm coordinator, I am responsible for 

werseeing implementation of our storm plan. The goal of our 

storm plan is to restore electric service to the customers as 

pickly and safely as possible and then to restore our 

iistribution system to its pre-storm condition following the 

iurricane. To achieve this goal, our storm plan provides for 

:he control and direction of the overall mobilization, 

)f crews, logistic support, damage assessment and restoration 

)recess. 

staging 

We implement our plan well before a hurricane strikes 

ur service area. 

itorm path, its intensity, and expected damage in conjunction 

iith outside weather services to identify resource needs and to 

'btain resource commitments before the hurricanes hit. 

We use computer modeling tools to track the 

We use 
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this information to plan and arrange for logistical needs, 

materials, equipment, and crews based on priorities of 

restoring service to our most critical and most customers as 

soon as possible. We update this information regularly at the 

96, 72, 48, and 24-hour marks prior to the impact of each 

hurricane. 

We also communicate constantly with the Energy 

Control Center and the transmission storm center to obtain 

realtime information on outages caused by the storm and to 

coordinate our restoration efforts. As soon as the hurricane 

winds die down to less than 35 miles per hour, we have our 

people out completing damage assessment, prioritizing the work, 

and beginning the restoration work. 

We implemented our storm plan four times during the 

2004 hurricane season as Hurricanes Charley, Frances, Ivan, and 

Jeanne struck our service territory one right after another. 

The damage to our distribution lines and equipment from these 

hurricanes was severe and widespread requiring us to mobilize 

and manage thousands of line, tree, and other personnel for the 

restoration work and thousands of items of equipment and 

material for the restoration effort. 

The numbers speaks for themselves. For Hurricane 

Charley, we replaced 667 miles of primary and secondary wire. 

We replaced 3,820 p o l e s ;  replaced 1,880 overhead and 

underground transformers among thousands of smaller items, and 
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we mobilized 3,623 line and service personnel, and 1,499 tree 

personnel in addition to our own personnel. 

For Hurricane Frances we used nearly 500 miles of 

primary and secondary wire, replaced 2,800 distribution poles, 

and replaced 1,560 overhead and underground transformers, along 

with thousand of smaller items, and we mobilized in addition to 

3ur own personnel 2,819 system, line, and service personnel, 

and 1,782 tree personnel. 

For Hurricane Ivan we mobilized 300 line and service 

personnel and 100 tree personnel in addition to our own 

personnel to restore electric service. 

And, finally, for Hurricane Jeanne we installed 222 

niles of primary and secondary wire, replaced 100 poles, 

installed 570 transformers, and we added to our personnel 2,622 

system, line, and service persorinel and 1,065 tree personnel. 

Although we had widespread outages from the 

hurricanes leaving from one-third to one-half of our customers 

sithout power at the peak of three of the hurricanes, we were 

2ble to restore power to customers in record time, often 

Deating our own internal restoration goals. Our work does not 

2nd when the prover goes back on, however, because we still 

nave to go back and repair damage caused by the hurricanes that 

sas by-passed in our effort to restore power as quickly as 

?ossible. So we conduct sweeps of our distribution lines 

Eollowing each hurricane to identify storm damage that did not 
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ieed to be addressed in order to restore service, but must be 

iddressed to put our distribution system back in the condition 

-t was prior to the hurricanes. We expect we will complete 

:his remaining work by the second quarter of this year. 

We continue to improve our storm plan following the 

lo04 hurricane season by incorporating lessons learned and to 

:he plan from hurricane to hurricane. We believe that even 

:hough Hurricanes Charley, Frances, Ivan, and Jeanne caused 

2xtensive damage to our distribution system and left record 

lumbers of customers without service at the peaks of the 

iurricanes, our storm plan proved to be an effective and 

2fficient tool to restore customer service as quickly as 

)ossible during this unprecedented hurricane season. We are 

rery proud of the response of our employees in the distribution 

irea for their hard work in making our storm plan work during 

m d  following these four hurricanes. 

MR. WALLS: At this time we would tender Mr. McDonald 

:or cross. 

CHAIRMAN BAEZ: And as I had stated earlier, I wanted 

:o break for lunch around 1:30, and I think this is probably as 

:lose as we are going to get on the button. So we are going to 

Ireak for 45 minutes, and we will reconvene and start with 

zross-examination at 2:15. We are in recess. 

(Lunch recess. ) 

CHAIRMAN BAEZ: Bring the hearing back to order. And 
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we are just about to start, the witness had been tendered for 

cross, Mr. Walls. Mr. McDonald, thank you. 

Ms. Christensen. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MS. CHRISTENSEN: 

Q Good afternoon, Mr. McDonald. There I can see you 

ylr. McDonald, as director of distribution assets management in 

?rogress Energy's delivery of business operations, part of your 

job requirement is coordination of storm recovery for the 

jistribution portion, is that correct? 

A I'm sorry, I was distracted. Could you repeat that. 

If I can. Q 

A The last part. 

Q Well, let me shorten this up. Mr. McDonald, is part 

,f your job requirement to coordinate storm recovery f o r  the 

listribution center for distribution? 

A To recover the facilities? 

Q No. Is it part of your job requirement to coordinate 

he storm recovery for distribution? 

A Yes, ma'am. 

Q Am I correct in understanding that the distribution 

torm plan is used mainly for hurricanes? 

A There is three levels, or four levels within the 

torm plan, 

esponse. 

so it is applicable for all levels of storm 
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Q Okay. When you implement the storm plan prior to the 

iurricane, the plan consists of different phases, am I correct? 

A Different - -  

Q Phases? 

A Yes, that is correct. 

Q And the phases you identified in your testimony are 

Ire-storm preparation, outages restoration, and distribution 

;ystems restoration, are those correct? 

A Yes, it is. 

Q In your testimony you do not address any 

Ire-hurricane season planning, is that correct? 

A No, that is not correct. We mention the storm 

)reparation, the training. Are you saying in the testimony? 

Q Well, as part of your phases that you discuss, you 

ion't have a phase for pre-hurricane or preseason planning? 

A Not in those three that we discussed, no. 

Q Am I correct that the cost associated with any 

Ire-hurricane season activities have not been charged to the 

;torm accounts? 

A That is correct. 

Q When you initiate your pre-storm activities, am I 

zorrect in assuming that is when you start charging costs to 

the storm accounts? 

A The exact time frame is determined upon when a storm 

2ccount number is issued, and it varies with each and every 
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Is it usually issued in the pre-storm phase? 

At times it is issued both pre-storm and during the 

storm, yes. 

Q If you know, once you started charging costs to the 

storm accounts, am I correct the portions of your salary and 

your staff's salary were charged to the storm account if they 

Mere working on the hurricanes? 

A If they were working directly on hurricane work, that 

is correct. 

Q Am I correct that immediately after the hurricanes 

you had outside crews and Progress crews working 16 hours per 

3ay ? 

A Yes. 

Q And were these crews, outside crews and Progress 

crews initially working seven days per week? 

A Yes, that is correct. 

Q How many days and/or months after the hurricanes did 

your workers revert back to a ten hour day, six days a week? 

A I don't know that. 

Q Do you know when your department reverted back to 

eight hour days, five days a week? 

A It varies with each individual for that department 

and it would depend upon the storm role. There may be 

individuals that are more involved in the storm restoration 
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?ost or the distribution restoration aspect of it than others, 

s o  there may be others that return to the eight hour day versus 

3ther individuals that are working the ten hour days. 

Q Well, do you know what percentage of your work force 

is working on ten hour days? 

A No, I do not. 

Q Do you know whether or not a majority of your crews 

are back on normal work days with normal percentage of 

Dvert ime? 

A 

Q 

I would not know that, no. 

Am I correct that your normal budgets include an 

assumption that you will have some percentage of overtime? 

A That is correct for our bargaining unit and nonexempt 

personal - 

Q For your bargaining unit and nonexempt personnel? 

A And certain supervisory positions in the exempt, that 

is correct. 

Q And that percentage of overtime includes overtime 

hours for outside crews that Progress normally contracts with 

as part of their normal operations, am I correct with that? 

A Could you restate the question? 

Q Certainly. The percentage of overtime that is 

included in your budget, that includes a component of overtime 

for outside crews that Progress normally would contract with 

during the normal course of its operations? 
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A No, it does not. 

Q Outside crew contractors are a separate overtime 

charge? 

A There is not - -  the actual contractor charge is a 

different bucket altogether. 

Q Okay. Does that outside crew contractor item have 

overtime calculated in there, as well? 

A No, it does not. 

Q Is the percentage of your normally budgeted overtime 

somewhere in the range of 1 5  to 2 0  percent? 

A I don't know that number. 

Q Let me ask you, if you know, what percentage of 

3vertime did you run in distribution for the bargaining units 

in January? 

A I do not know that. 

Q 

A No, I do not. 

Q 

Do you know for February? 

At the end of your testimony you include some photos 

3f downed poles, is that correct? 

A Yes. 

Q And Mr. Lyash at the service hearing showed some 

Iictures of some wooden poles that were blown down to the 

jround. Are you familiar with these pictures? 

A Yes, I am. 

Q Am I correct - -  and these are Exhibit 8 to your 
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estimony, am I correct in that also? 

A These are what, I'm sorry? 

Q That is Exhibit 8 of your direct testimony? 

A Yes. 

Q Am I correct that the greatest stress on a wooden 

)ole in relation to the ground is approximately a third of the 

7ay up the pole? 

A I do not know that. 

MS. CHRISTENSEN: I have no further questions. 

CHAIRMAN BAEZ: Mr. McWhirter. 

MR. McWHIRTER: Yes, sir. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

3Y MR. McWHIRTER: 

Q On Page 13 you talk about planning activities 

indertaken prior to arrival of the storm, and apparently 

zhrough the communications department you repeatedly alert 

Jarious people of the hurricanes coming and the impact the 

storms might have on your facilities. Do you know how the cost 

3f the people that are doing that were booked in 2004, whether 

the cost of your regular employees were booked to O&M or to 

storm damage? 

A No, I don't know. 

Q 

stuff? 

A 

You are not responsible for most of the accounting 

No, sir. 
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Q Okay. I'm going to skip over those kind of 

questions, then. On Page 22 you begin talking about the 

hurricane season, and let's first talk about Hurricane Charley. 

That was one of the biggest ones. You had to replace 667 miles 

of primary and secondary wire, and 3,820 poles, and 1,880 

overhead and underground transformers. 

wire and the poles and the transformers? 

A From material information. 

Q Does that mean that - -  is that a department of your 

Where did you get that 

company? 

A There is a material - -  there is a material section of 

3ur company, that is correct. 

Q And do you know whether that inventory of materials 

Mas already in stock or something that you purchased for the 

storm? 

A As a storm is coming into our service territory, as 

?art of our pre-storm planning we check our inventory to ensure 

2ased upon the magnitude of the storm, which in turn allows us 

-0 gauge the potential impact and damage associated with that. 

armed with that information we take a quick inventory of what 

ve have in stock or what we have in our warehouses and 

letermine whether we need to order more. And in the case of a 

Zharley, we would contact our vendors to secure their 

:apabilities to provide us more material. 

Q Well, you have got 1,880 overhead and underground 
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transformers. Are those easy to come by on the open market? 

Do your suppliers have those on hand, or do most of these come 

from your internal? 

A Well, there is the combination of what we had in 

stock, what the manufacturer had in stock, and then what they 

could secure from their various sources. As an example, a lot 

of utility companies have consignment as part of their material 

stockpile, so the vendor would be able to have access or be 

able to work with other utilities to be able to get access to 

those transformers. 

Q From your position with the company you don't know 

what portion of those transformers came from the material you 

already had on hand? 

A No, sir. 

Q And are you responsible with purchasing or does some 

other department handle that? 

A There is another department responsible for that. 

Q And I don't think there is any witness that will be 

able to tell us about this, maybe Mr. Portuondo, but one of the 

problems that the state faced was gouging on prices. Do you 

know whether your company faced any of that? 

A I wouldn't know that, sir. 

Q Now, you indicate that the restoration costs 

attributable to Hurricane Charley on Page 23  were $108 million. 

Where did you get that number? 
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A That was provided through our accounting section to 

ne. 

CHAIRMAN BAEZ: Mr. McWhirter, can you and the 

sitness both get a little closer to your microphones. I'm 

laving trouble hearing. 

MR. McWHIRTER: I wasn't on, I'm sorry. 

3Y MR. McWHIRTER: 

Q On Page 24 you say that Hurricane Frances cost 

$95.8 million, but Mr. Portuondo in his Exhibit JP Number 1, 

uhich has now been numbered Exhibit 24, he says the cost was 

$118.6 million. Do you know whether his $95 million is correct 

3r your 118 is correct? 

A I would delegate that to Mr. Portuondo. 

Q Whatever you got you relied on him? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q And it looks like about 87 percent of the total storm 

zosts were as a result of activities within the distribution 

system. Is that a fair evaluation as far as you know? 

A 

3Y MR. 

Q 

I don't know that percentage. 

MR. McWHIRTER: That's all the questions I have. 

CHAIRMAN BAEZ: Mr. Twomey. 

MR. TWOMEY: Yes, sir, just briefly. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

TWOMEY : 

Mr. McDonald, you say in your summary of your 
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testimony at Page 3 that, as I understand it, amongst the 

things the company wants to do is identify problems you had 

during the storm and see how you can not only fix the system, 

but fix it on a going-forward basis, right? Identify problems 

that you may have that you can fix in the future and avoid 

further problems? 

A Could you help me to understand which part you are 

referring to, please. 

Q At Line 3 ,  Page 3 ,  it ends with the company's attempt 

to identify and correct further storm damage that was not 

3ddressed during the restoration process. You go on at 6, "1 

uill include the company's goals and priorities as it prepares 

Eor response to and recovers from the storm impact on its 

jistribution system." And I've got a question with respect to 

that, and that is, is your distribution system rated for 

iertain wind levels? 

A Our distribution system is rated per the NESC at 6 0  

niles an hour. That is what the rating for that particular 

system is, yes. 

Q Do I assume correctly that it was built to that 

specification? 

A That is correct. 

Q Now, if you know, did the system in the storms that 

qou experienced stand up to those winds? 

A If you measure the type of response from our system 
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Dased upon the equipment that I am about to give you, then I 

sould say yes, it did. And the point being is based upon the 

number of poles that fell and were replaced we lost 

2pproximately 6,700 poles, and take into consideration some of 

those poles could be multiple, could have failed multiple times 

Dased upon the hurricanes we saw. But if you take it on just 

€ace value that those were individual instances, that is less 

than 7/lOths of a percent of our poles that failed. If you 

look at our transformers, we had approximately 1 percent of our 

transformers that we replaced as a result of four catastrophic 

nurricanes. So, yes, I would say our system performed very 

aell. 

Q Not to belabor this, but where the poles fell, you 

aould have expected them to fall by the virtue of the wind 

zxperienced in that area, is that generally correct? 

A Based upon the wind that you saw in that area, but 

nore importantly what caused the failure. You know, was it 

zaused by a tree falling into the particular facility. Was it 

claused by aluminum shed that flies into the facilities, the 

clonductors, and then acts like a sail. Based upon the wind 

speed, and that sail, it pulls it over. So there is a lot of 

variables that go into whether a pole would fail or not. 

MR. TWOMEY: I see. That's all I have. Thanks. 

CHAIRMAN BAEZ: Staff. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 
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3Y MS. RODAN: 

Q Please draw your attention to Page 21 of your 

:estimony, beginning at Line 6. Here you discuss a change in 

;he storm plan that established a grading sheet for contract 

:rews. Did you achieve any cost savings using the grading 

sheet? 

A We released contract crews as we completed our 

restoration efforts. We released contract crews based upon the 

Tuality and based upon the cost of those particular crews, so 

ae went by that prioritization when we released them. We 

iidn't have a quantification of that, but, yes, based upon that 

logic, the answer would be yes. 

Q Now, please direct your attention to staff's 

Zonsolidated exhibit, which has been marked and entered into 

the record as Exhibit Number 6 .  On Bates stamped page Numbers 

95 through 96 is Progress Energy's response to staff's fourth 

set of interrogatories Number 38. Are you familiar with and 

did you participate in the preparation of this response? 

A Yes, I did. 

Q In the response to Subsection A, the company 

indicated that pole replacements that have already occurred due 

to storm restoration activities would have occurred over the 

next two years, is that correct? 

A That is correct. 

Q Does the company's response indicate that those 
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future activities which were to occur in 2005  

longer need to occur are being fully adjusted out of the 

clompany's request in this proceedings? 

and 2006 that no 

A No. What we are stating is that based upon the 

3riorities that we had established going into the storm we 

uould now take those funds and apply them towards the next 

Level on our prioritization list for pole maintenance. 

Q Is the adjustment for only one year or does it cover 

nultiple years? 

A 

Q 

It would cover multiple years. 

Would you agree subject to check that the adjustment 

.s for 2 0 0 5  through 2 0 0 6 ?  

A I'm sorry, ma'am, I didn't hear the first part of 

'our statement. 

Q Would you agree subject to check that the adjustment 

s for 2005  through 2 0 0 6 ?  

A I'm sorry, you are going to have to restate your 

uestion. I really apologize. 

Q Would you agree that the adjustment would cover 2005  

nd 2 0 0 6 ?  

A Yes, ma'am. I'm sorry. 

Q Did the company replace lightning arrestors as part 

f its hurricane restoration activities? 

A Not during the normal restoration, but it is part of 

he follow-up sweep effort, yes. 
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activity? 
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Is the replacement of lightning arrestors a normal 

A normal activities of what? Day-to-day normal 

activity, normal activity of sweeps, I'm not sure of your 

question. 

Q Day-to-day normal activity? 

A Yes, it is. 

Q Under normal conditions, does the utility inspect its 

system on a 100 percent basis every year? 

A Utilizing our interfaces through various means, we 

interface with our facilities on an annual basis, yes. 

Q Is it possible that during post-hurricane sweeps the 

company performed repairs that may not have been caused by the 

hurricanes of 2 0 0 4 ?  

A During the hurricane sweeps we made it very clear to 

the individuals that performed this sweep that they were to 

identify work that was a result of the hurricanes, and once 

that work was identified or once those issues were identified, 

that work was to become part of the sweep mitigation. 

Q Is it possible that the amount of tree trimming that 

occurred during 2004  on a total basis was more than what the 

utility would have otherwise accomplished? 

A Your question assumes - -  the response to that 

question is there was more money spent 

2004  than what normally would be spent 

trimming trees during 

However, that money is 
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broken into two different categories. One is production 

trimming and one is restoration trimming. Those are two 

different types of trimming. So when it comes to production 

trimming, we spent at the same levels we had previously. 

Q Would it be reasonable to conclude that the 

additional level of tree trimming during 2 0 0 4  will put downward 

pressure on near term future tree trimming activities? 

A No. The type of trimming that was done during the 

restoration efforts is spot trimming. It is identifying those 

individual trees/limbs that are interacting with our facilities 

and hindering our ability to restore service, or those that are 

identified during the tree sweeps that as a result of the 

hurricanes could in the near term impact our facilities. That 

is not the production trimming that we do based upon the growth 

patterns of the trees that occur in our right-of-ways. So 

there are two different types of efforts. The expenditures in 

one arena doesn't cause a change in the other arena. 

MS. RODAN: Thank you. No further questions. 

CHAIRMAN BAEZ: Commissioners, questions? 

Redirect. 

MR. WALLS: Just a couple of follow-up questions. 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. WALLS: 

Q Mr. McDonald, you were asked about the answer to the 

interrogatory in staff's discovery regarding the pole 
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eplacement, and is the gist of your answer that that money 

ill be used to replace poles elsewhere on your testimony? 

A That is correct. 

Q And can you explain why the pole replacement that 

ccurred during the hurricane restoration process didn't 

isplace your pole replacement program as part of your 

laintenance? 

A We have over 1.1 million poles. If you remember, I 

aid less than 7/10ths of a percent of our poles were impacted. 

o we have 99.3 percent of the remaining population that we 

fill continue our maintenance programs on. 

Q And is the work that occurred during the hurricanes, 

he damage you saw, is that the type of work to correct that 

.amage that would displace your maintenance? 

A No, it is not. 

Q And can you explain why it wouldn't be? 

A The type of work that was done during the restoration 

jeriod was purely to restore our facilities to the pre-storm 

:ondition, both restoration and to the pre-storm operating 

:ondition. The type of maintenance we would do would be 

Iocused on the long-term optimization of life cycle, the 

-eduction of faults, or the mitigation of interruptions, one of 

:hose three areas, which is not the area that we focused on 

turing the restoration efforts. 

Q And why does the company have to go back in what you 
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call the sweeps work and do that work to put the system back 

into pre-storm condition? 

A We were focused on during the restoration arena, we 

vzlere focused on restoring service as quickly as possible to our 

zustomers. We want to maintain a state of normalcy, return 

:hem to a state of normalcy. 

Eashion that doesn't return it to its original state 

ire-hurricane, which is a state that allowed us to have a 2 5  

Iercent reduction in our SAID1 

'xpectations from our customers that is non-hurricane related 

:hat we have to return to. So at the conclusion of that 

-estoration of a hurricane, we need to return our facilities to 

hat pre-hurricane condition to provide that same level of 

ervice we provided in the past or pre-hurricane. 

In those efforts, we restore in a 

performance. So we have 

MR. WALLS: No further questions. 

CHAIRMAN BAEZ: Mr. Walls, I have Exhibits 9 through 

6 ?  

MR. WALLS: Yes. At this time we would move Mr. 

cDonald's Exhibits 9 through 16 into evidence. 

CHAIRMAN BAEZ: Without objection show them admitted 

nto the record. 

(Exhibits 9 through 16 admitted into record.) 

CHAIRMAN BAEZ: Thank you, Mr. McDonald. 

THE WITNESS: Thank you. 

MR. WALLS: At this time we would call Sarah Rogers. 
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SARAH S. ROGERS 

was called as a witness on behalf of Progress Energy Florida, 

and having been duly sworn, testified as follows: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. WALLS: 

Q Ms. Rogers, will you please introduce yourself to the 

Commission and provide your address? 

A Yes. My name is Sarah Rogers. I am the 

Vice-president of Transmission for Progress Energy, and my 

address is 100 Ease Davey Street, Raleigh, North Carolina 

27601. 

Q And who do you work for and what is your position? 

A I work f o r  Progress Energy Carolina, and I am the 

vice-president over the transmission systems in the states of 

North Carolina, South Carolina, and Florida. 

Q Have you filed prefiled testimony and exhibits in 

this case? 

A I have. 

Q And do you have any changes to make to your prefiled 

testimony at this time? 

A Yes, I do. 

Q Can you tell us what those are? 

A Yes. On Page 1, Line 3, I am actually currently 

employed by Progress Energy Carolina as opposed to Progress 

 energy Florida. And then on 4, my business address as stated 
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3arlier is 100 East Davey Street, Raleigh, North Carolina. And 

)n Line 8, my title is now just Vice-president of Transmission. 

lou can strike the first Florida, and I am employed by Progress 

Inergy Carolina. 

Q At the time you filed your prefiled testimony, was 

;hat your position, though? 

A That was my position at the time, that is correct. 

Q Do you have any other changes to your testimony? 

A I do not, no. 

Q And if I asked you the same questions in your 

?refiled testimony today, would you have the same answers that 

3re in your testimony? 

A Yes, I would. 

MR. WALLS: We request at this time that Ms. Rogers' 

?refiled testimony be moved into evidence as if it was read. 

CHAIRMAN BAEZ: Without objection show the direct 

zestimony of Sarah Rogers entered into the record as though 

read. 
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FPSC DOCKET NO. 041272-E1 

IN RE: PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA, INC.’S PETITION 
FOR APPROVAL OF STORM COST RECOVERY CLAUSE FOR 

EXTRAORDINARY EXPENDITURES RELATED TO HURRICANES 
CHARLEY, FRANCES, JEANNE, AND IVAN. 

DIRECT TESTIMONY OF SARAH ROGERS 

I. INTRODUCTION AND QUALIFICATIONS 

Please state your name, your employer, and business address. 

My name is Sarah 

business address is 

c.GLdi wi 

Please tell us your position and describe your duties and responsibilities in that 

position. 

I am the Vice President of Transmission -43eda for Progress Energy Fkkda, Inc. 
ClwdW 

(“PEF” or the “Company”). I am also the Transmission System Coordinator for the 

Company’s transmission system in the event of a severe storm or other disaster. This 

position is equivalent to the Storm Director position for the Company’s distribution 

system. As the Company’s Transmission System Coordinator, I am responsible for 

the implementation of the Company’s Transmission Department Storm Plan. 

Please summarize your educational background and employment experience. 

I have a BSEE from San Diego State University and an MBA from Duke University. 

I have been employed by Progress Energy since March 19, 1984. I am a registered 

professional engineer in the states of Florida and North Carolina. The majority of my 
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career has been in Transmission in roles such as engineering, planning, and 

maintenance. I was the Vice President of the Transmission Department in the 

Carolinas for three years prior to becoming the Vice President of Transmission 

Florida in December 2000. During my career in North Carolina, I led or participated 

in the transmission restoration following the extensive storm damage from Hurricanes 

Hugo, Fran, and Floyd. 
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8 11. PURPOSE AND SUMMARY OF TESTIMONY 

9 Q. 

10 A. 

11 

12 

Please describe the purpose, and provide a summary, of your testimony. 

I am providing testimony on the Company’s Transmission Department Storm Plan 

and the implementation of that Plan for Hurricanes Charley, Frances, Ivan, and 

Jeanne. My testimony will describe each of the four parts of the Transmission 

Department Storm Plan: (1) Pre-Season Activities; (2) Pre-Storm Activities; (3) 

Damage Assessment and Repair; and (4) Recovery Follow-up Activities. This 

testimony will explain the organization, coordination, and management of personnel, 

material, and equipment to prepare for, respond to, and recover from the effects of 

severe storms on the Company’s transmission system. Because the Plan is updated 

with each storm, my testimony describing the four parts of the Plan will fiather 

explain the implementation of the Plan during and following the four hurricanes that 

struck PEF’s service territory during the 2004 hurricane season. 

I will further testify about the severe damage to PEF’s transmission system as 

a result of Hurricane Charley and the subsequent, less severe, but more extensive 

damage from Hurricanes Frances and Jeanne. I will explain the scope and extent of 
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that storm damage and the Company’s extraordinary efforts to prepare for, respond 

to, and recover from the storms. This testimony will include the work done during 

the storms to enable the safe and expeditious restoration of customer service and the 

follow-up work that was completed and remains to be done to ensure that the 

transmission system is restored as much as possible to its condition prior to the 

storms. 

Are you sponsoring any exhibits to your testimony? 

Yes. I am sponsoring the following exhibits to my testimony: 

SSR-1 Map of the Company’s Transmission Areas. 

SSR-2 Transmission Department Storm Plan. 

SSR-3 Map of Path of Hurricane Charley over PEF’s Transmission 

System. 

Map of Path of Hurricane Frances over PEF’s Transmission 

System. 

Map of Path of Hurricane Jeanne over PEF’s Transmission 

System. 

Composite Map of Hurricane Paths on PEF’s Transmission 

System. 

Composite Exhibit of Pictures of Transmission Storm Damage. 

SSR-4 

SSR-7 

Each of these exhibits was prepared under my direction, and each is true and accurate. 

SSR-5 

SSR-6 

22 

23 
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Q. 

A. 

111. THE COMPANY’S TRANSMISSION SYSTEM 

Please describe the Company’s existing transmission system. 

The Company’s transmission system connects the Company’s 62 generation units 

through 363 substations to the distribution system to serve approximately 1.5 million 

customers in 35 of the state’s 67 counties. By pole mile there are 169 miles of 500kV 

transmission lines, 1,2 15 miles of 230kV lines, 760 miles of 1 15kV lines, 2,029 miles 

of 69kV lines, for a total of 4,174 transmission pole miles within the approximately 

20,000 square miles of PEF’s service territory. These lines are supported by a variety 

of different structures, including aluminum towers, steel towers, and concrete, steel, 

and wood poles in various configurations, and include a wide variety of related 

equipment and material, including various types and quantities of cable, ground rods, 

bolts, insulators, and connectors. 

14 Q. How is the Company’s transmission system organized? 

15 A. 

16 

17 

The Company’s transmission system is divided into four regions: Suncoast, South 

Central Florida, North Central Florida, and North Florida. A map of the Company’s 

transmission areas is included as Exhibit - (SSR-1) to my testimony. Each of these 

18 four regions serves as an area storm center with its own storm/emergency plan under 

the Transmission Department Storm Plan. 19 

20 

21 IV. THE COMPANY’S TRANSMISSION DEPARTMENT STORM PLAN 

22 Q. Does the Company have a storm plan for its transmission system? 
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Yes, it does. The Transmission Department Storm Plan is the creation of best 

practices between the Company and its sister company in North Carolina and, thus, 

incorporates the experience and lessons learned from more recent hurricanes and ice 

storms in the Carolinas. The Transmission Department Storm Plan covers 

catastrophic damage to transmission facilities where repair is beyond the local 

transmission maintenance personnel or the issuance of a wide area severe weather 

warning by the National Weather Service. 

Please describe the Transmission Department Storm Plan. 

The main objective of the Plan is to enable the Company to quickly assess damage to 

the transmission system, determine the manpower and other requirements needed to 

correct the damage, and initiate the appropriate restoration response. The Plan is 

designed to inform Company personnel, including the Transmission System 

Coordinator, about the resources available to them when a severe storm occurs and to 

assist them in directing and coordinating the preparation for, response to, and 

recovery from the impact of a severe storm on the transmission system, The storm 

plan is made available to all employees who have assigned duties with respect to the 

transmission system during severe storms. 

The Plan is divided into four areas to accomplish this objective: (1) Pre- 

Season Activities; (2) Pre-Storm Activities; (3) Damage Assessment and Repair; and 

(4) Recovery Follow-up Activities. Pre-season activities include reviewing and 

revising the Plan on an ongoing basis to ensure that it is current and incorporates the 

Company’s latest knowledge learned from dealing with severe storms. These 
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activities also include the necessary arrangements prior to the severe storm and 

hurricane seasons to ensure that the Company is prepared for the storms. 

Pre-storm activities involve the preparation for a storm as the storm 

approaches PEF’s service territory. The amount of preparation that takes place 

depends on the probability the storm will hit PEF’s service territory. The more likely 

a storm will hit the more preparation that takes place. This preparation may involve 

setting up the storm center or area storm centers and activating teams as may be 

required to respond to a particular storm. In addition, we have check lists that specify 

tasks to be completed 72 hours, 48 hours, and 24 hours prior to the storm hitting. 

Damage Assessment and Repair commences as the storm passes through 

PEF’s service territory and continues after the storm has passed. This information is 

used to determine the resources needed for the restoration process and to begin to 

assess priorities for the restoration work, 

Recovery Follow-up Activities involve all aspects of winding down the 

Company’s storm response and restoration efforts. This includes deactivating the 

storm centers, canceling outside contractors and releasing crews, de-mobilizing 

Company storm crews, and finishing any required clean-up. 

The Company is constantly improving its Transmission Department Storm 

Plan as it learns more about responding to severe storms. In this way, the Plan is a 

living document, reflecting the Company’s most up-to-date knowledge about the 

preparation for and response to severe storms. As noted above, lessons learned from 

our sister company in the Carolinas in prior hurricanes and ice storms were, for 

example, incorporated into the plan prior to its adoption as a best practice for PEF. A 
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copy of the Company’s current Transmission Department Storm Plan is included as 

Exhibit - (SSR-2) to my testimony. 

How is the Company’s storm response organized under the Plan? 

As the Vice President of Transmission for PEF I am the Transmission System 

Coordinator. I decide when to implement the Plan as a severe storm approaches and 

call for the Transmission Storm Center to be set up. The Transmission Storm Center 

is the central command for the Company’s preparation for and response to severe 

storm damage to its transmission system. The Transmission Storm Center is set up at 

the Company’s offices in Lake Mary unless the approaching storm requires the 

Center to be set up in an alternative location. 

There are two Assistant Transmission System Coordinators, the Director of 

Transmission Construction and the Director of Transmission Engineering for the 

Company. They are also located in the Transmission Storm Center with the 

Transmission System Coordinator. This provides the Company with immediate 

access to the Company’s expertise in transmission construction and engineering 

during the storm. Their responsibilities are spelled out in more detail in the 

Company’s Plan. 

In a separate location at Lake Mary, a Transmission Logistics Center is 

established and led by the Logistics Support Coordinators. The Transmission 

Logistics Center is established to provide material, engineering, contracting, 

accounting, and scheduling support during storm restoration activities at the direction 

of the Transmission System Coordinator. The responsibilities of the Logistics 
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Support Coordinators are also set forth in more detail in the Transmission Department 

Storm Plan. 

If the damage to the transmission system from the storm affects one or more 

of the four transmission areas, the area storm centers will be activated. Each of the 

four transmission areas has its own storm center located in the transmission area and 

its own storm plan. The transmission area storm centers are led by the Area 

Transmission Coordinators. The responsibilities of the Area Transmission 

Coordinators are set forth in both the Transmission Department Storm Plan and in the 

respective transmission area storm plan because the area storm plans are components 

of the Transmission Department Storm Plan. The transmission areas storm plans are 

also updated as the Company improves its storm preparation and response and 

updates its Transmission Department Storm Plan. 12 

13 

14 Q. 

15 A. 

16 

What are the Company’s transmission system priorities during a severe storm? 

The safety of the public and the Company’s customers is the paramount consideration 

when the storm plan is in effect. The first objective toward this goal is to make sure 

that the reliability of the state-wide transmission grid is not undermined as a result of 

the storm. Transmission support for the Company’s generators is also critical to 

ensure that adequate generation capacity is available during the storm for those 

customers with continued service and immediately after restoration efforts for those 

customers who lost electric service as a result of the storm. As part of the Plan, the 

Company prioritized its transmission lines in terms of grid security for the state and 

PEF and economic impact to PEF and its customers. 
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Once the transmission grid is stabilized and the connections to the generation 

facilities are secure, the Company’s next priority is energizing substations that have 

been de-energized due to the storm as a result of the loss of transmission service or 

other storm damage. Transmission crews focus on repairing storm damage to the 

substations and establishing at least one connection to transmission line service that 

can be energized. Substation service must be re-established to enable the distribution 

system to begin restoring power to customers. Accordingly, the Company works to 

restore substations as quickly as possible. 

The next priority for transmission during and immediately following a severe 

storm is work on the transmission lines with the least significant damage. The 

Company then moves from transmission line to transmission line according to the 

severity of the storm damage. 

During a severe storm, the Transmission System Coordinator takes direction 

from the Company’s Energy Control Center (ECC) to establish the priorities for 

transmission storm restoration work. ECC will identify the transmission lines that 

have lost power during the storm and prioritize the restoration of the lines to maintain 

reliability of the grid, support the Company’s generation facilities, and then begin 

restoration of customer service. The Transmission System Coordinator also consults 

with the Distribution System Storm Center on a regular basis during and following 

the storm to determine the distribution priorities, which generally center around 

restoring power to the most critical customers and the most customers possible. 

Finally, the local transmission area storm centers report storm damage and restoration 

efforts in their areas from their field crews on an ongoing basis and this information is 
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also used to establish and adjust priorities as the restoration process proceeds. 

Additionally, the local transmission storm centers also coordinate closely with the 

wholesale customers to coordinate and prioritize the restoration of affected points of 

delivery to their distribution systems. 

Are there other ways that the Company coordinates its storm restoration 

efforts? 

Yes. In addition to the constant communication between the transmission and 

distribution storm centers and the ECC, the distribution storm response team further 

provides the transmission department with much of its logistics needs, such as 

lodging for the transmission line and tree crews and shared staging areas, where 

practicable. In some ways, however, further efficiencies between the transmission 

and distribution storm response efforts simply cannot be achieved. The transmission 

storm restoration effort, for example, requires line crews skilled in transmission line 

work and specialized equipment. The distribution storm center cannot then, share 

line crews and much of the equipment it needs to respond to the storm with the 

Transmission Department. The transmission and distribution storm centers will share 

resources, however, when practicable and efficient to do so. 

When does the Company implement its Transmission Department Storm Plan 

during a hurricane and how does it work? 

The Transmission System Coordinator will decide to implement the Plan and set up 

the Transmission Storm Center between 96 and 72 hours prior to the hurricane’s 
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making landfall. Upon implementation of the Plan and the area storm plans, the 

Storm Center, the logistics center, and the transmission area storm centers are 

activated and the coordinators commence their storm preparation work. Detailed lists 

of these pre-storm activities are set forth in the Plan and in the areas storm plans. 

Commencing 96 to 72 hours ahead of the storm, for example, the responsible storm 

personnel check inventories of materials, the conditions of vehicles and equipment, 

and gather lists of outside contractors, equipment vendors, and material suppliers and 

reserve or hold critical material and equipment. Between 72 and 48 hours before the 

hurricane, the number of available transmission construction crews are identified and 

arrangements made to secure them for work during the storm, substations are secured, 

helicopter service is contacted to verify availability, and the storm plan is reviewed 

and all tools and equipment are checked and readied for the storm. 

Within 48 and 24 hours before the hurricane, crew assignments are made and 

outside crews are contacted and reserved for storm restoration efforts. All special 

equipment needs are identified and obtained and the crews, material, and equipment 

are prepared for the restoration efforts. 

Between 24 hours and the time the hurricane strikes, response team action 

plans are developed to begin storm damage assessment, verification, and restoration 

work schedules. All contract and Company crews are put on alert and assignments 

begin and helicopter crews are put in place. As soon as it is safe, the helicopters are 

called and Company damage assessment teams fly the transmission lines and assess 

the damage. Right-of-way damage is also assessed, right-of-way clearing needs are 

identified, and clearing activities commence. Patrols are also sent out by truck to 
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assess damage, make assignments for the restoration work, and begin to sectionalize 

the transmission system through switches to get substations back on line. Material 

and equipment not otherwise available are ordered, the staging areas commence 

operation, and crew work schedules are established and the restoration work 

commences. This process is repeated throughout the storm until restoration is 

complete. Through constant contact with ECC to determine what lines are out and 

what lines are priorities, together with the stream of damage assessment reports 

coming in from the aerial and land assessment teams, a work plan is developed each 

night for the next day. 

Further detail on the storm preparation activities and the storm restoration 

work is contained in the Company’s storm plan and area storm plans. 

How do you measure the effectiveness of your storm planning and restoration 

process? 

We measure OLE storm restoration effectiveness through daily estimated time of 

restoration (ETR) goals for energizing substations. Remember, the transmission 

system must be up and running before customers connected to the distribution system 

and wholesale customers can receive power. The emphasis of the Transmission 

Department then, is to energize the substations that have been knocked out by the 

storm to set the stage for the restoration of customer service. We begin setting ETR 

goals for our substations immediately and revise them as we learn more about the 

storm damage from our damage assessment teams and as we begin to prioritize our 

resources. Each day, we strive to meet or exceed our ETR goals. 

12 
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Our planning effectiveness begins with the implementation of our storm plan. 

We know our plan incorporates the knowledge gained through our sister company’s 

experience with hurricanes and ice storms in the Carolinas and has proven to be 

effective. We also know that we did a good job of assessing the damage and 

projecting and obtaining our resource needs and in fact even improved in these areas 

from storm to storm this hurricane season. This experience demonstrates that our 

planning was sound and that we have the necessary flexibility to adapt to the 

inevitable changes in the location, timing, and intensity of storms as they arise. 

V. HURRICANE CHARLEY 

Was the Transmission Department Storm Plan implemented for Hurricane 

Charley? 

Yes, it was. The Plan was implemented on August 10,2004, prior to the hurricane’s 

making landfall in Charlotte County on August 13,2004. 

What was the impact of Hurricane Charley on PEF’s transmission system? 

Hurricane Charley had the most devastating impact on PEF’s transmission system. 

At the time Hurricane Charley made landfall it was a category 4 hurricane with 

sustained winds of 145 miles per hour. Hurricane Charley proceeded on a 

northeastern path across Florida, traveling through much of PEF’s service territory, 

with category 4 and 3 force winds. 700 miles of transmission lines and 83 substations 

were knocked out of service as a result of the hurricane. 630 transmission structures 

were knocked down or damaged. The damage to PEF’s transmission system was 
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most severe along the path of the eye of Hurricane Charley as it traveled from 

Wauchula to Fort Meade to Lake Wales and up through the Orlando area. A map 

showing the path of Hurricane Charley across our transmission system in our service 

territory is included as Exhibit - (SSR-3) to my testimony. 4 

5 

6 Q. What was the Company’s response to Hurricane Charley? 

7 A. The Company began to implement its storm plan before Hurricane Charley and 

continued to follow the Plan through the course of the storm restoration. As soon as 

the winds had died down to a safe level, helicopters were used to fly damage 

assessors along every mile of the Company’s transmission system affected by the 

storm to assess the damage. Damage assessment crews also began to drive, if 

possible, along the affected transmission line. Eventually, every mile of the 

Company’s transmission system was checked and any storm damage was assessed 

and reported back to the field construction and engineering crews. 

The restoration strategy focused on first restoring lines to generation sites to 

ensure that adequate generation capacity was available. Beginning with the energized 

lines, the Company worked to put together a grid to restore as many substations as 

possible. The Company does this by dividing the lines into sections around breakers 

to isolate the damaged lines and get the substations back on line. 

The Company’s priorities are the transmission lines with the least significant 

damage. The Company then moved from transmission line to transmission line 

according to the severity of the storm damage. An important tool in this process was 

the use of helicopter air cranes to fly transmission structures from the staging areas to 
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the job sites. This enabled the Company to replace the downed and damaged 

transmission structures as quickly as possible and was especially useful in 

inaccessible right-of-way areas and swamp land. The Company worked around-the- 

clock to restore transmission service on all lines that were knocked out of service as a 

result of the storm. 

With 83 substations de-energized from Hurricane Charley, we began 

sectionalizing lines and restoring substations as soon as the storm permitted. 

Following this initial restoration, we established ETR goals for each remaining 

substation. Overall we restored 93% of the substations prior to the established ETR. 

Nearly 80% were restored within three days of the storm. All generation and 

transmission substations that were de-energized were restored the day after the storm, 

and nearly all retail substations were restored in six days. 

The restoration costs directly attributable to transmission as a result of 

Hurricane Charley are $28 million. 

When the downed transmission lines and substations are re-energized are the 

Company’s storm-related efforts complete? 

No. Once a hurricane strikes PEF’s service territory, the Company works to restore 

transmission lines to service as quickly as possible. That is the fmt step. 

Transmission service from the generation facilities and to the substations must be in 

place and energized before customer service can be restored. The Company, 

therefore, will do whatever is necessary to safely energize the line. The second step 

is to come back after customer service is restored to fix storm damage that did not 
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need to be corrected to energize the line. The Company must ensure that facilities 

and equipment damaged by the storm are repaired or replaced in accordance with the 

Company's standards. 

For example, the shield wire above the main conductor on the transmission 

line was broken or knocked down by tree limbs or other storm debris in a number of 

places. This shield wire protects the main conductor from direct lightning strikes but 

is not essential to energizing the line. Where the shield wire was broken or knocked 

down it was cut down completely during the restoration work and the main conductor 

was restored or replaced and energized. Following the restoration effort the 

Company will go back and replace the shield wire where it was destroyed or damaged 

and install the shield wire consistent with the Company's standards. 

The Company will conduct sweeps of the transmission system after the 

restoration work to identify further storm-related damage that must be repaired or 

replaced. Other examples of the storm damage identified during the sweeps include 

cracked poles, damaged conductors, flashed insulators, leaning or falling trees, failed 

battery banks, non-functioning relays, and substation fence damage. After the sweeps 

are complete, the Company will send out crews to correct the storm damage that was 

identified. The Company anticipates completing its transmission storm damage 

repairs by 2"d quarter 2005. 

VI. HURRICANE FRANCES 

Was the Company's transmission system affected by Hurricane Frances? 

I 
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Yes, it was. Although Hurricane Frances was not as intense a hurricane as Hurricane 

Charley, it had a wider impact, affecting all of PEF’s service territory, and stayed 

over PEF’s territory for a longer period of time. Strong winds with gusts of nearly 

100 miles per hour affected PEF’s service territory for almost a fill day. Also, the 

storm dumped 6 to 12 inches of rain across PEF’s service territory, and some areas 

received even more rain. Trees with roots systems weakened by the wind and rain 

from Hurricane Charley were further weakened by Hurricane Frances and fell. 

As a result of Hurricane Frances, 1,13 1 miles of PEF’s transmission lines and 

105 substations were knocked out of service. PEF had to further repair or replace 21 1 

damaged transmission structures. A map showing the path of Hurricane Frances 

across our transmission system in our service territory is included as Exhibit - (SSR- 

4) to my testimony. 

What was the Company’s response to Hurricane Frances? 

The Company again implemented its storm plan on September 1,2004, three days 

before the hurricane made landfall in Florida on September 4,2004. The Company 

followed the same restoration strategy it followed in Hurricane Charley. The only 

difference was the restoration work in Hurricane Frances was on a much broader 

scale. Through switching and isolation of damaged lines, 48 of the de-energized 

substations were restored before the storm had fully cleared the state. Another 46 

substations were restored the following day by correcting minor issues and 

performing further switching. The remaining 11 substations were restored on the 
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1 third day following the storm. The Company’s restoration efforts overtook its ETRs 

before they were firmly established. 

The restoration costs directly attributable to transmission as a result of 

Hurricane Frances are $18 million. 

VII. HURRICANE IVAN 
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8 A. 
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Did Hurricane Ivan have an impact on PEF’s transmission system? 

Yes, but the impact was relatively minor. There were customer outages as a result of 

the hurricane, but thankfully there was no real damage to PEF’s transmission system 

because the brunt of Hurricane Ivan occurred west of PEF’s service territory. This 

does not mean that PEF’s Transmission Department did not have to prepare to 

respond to Hurricane Ivan, however. Hours before the hurricane made landfall it was 

projected to strike more to the east and in PEF’s service territory. As a result, PEF 

was preparing for the worst, considering the fact that Hurricane Ivan was a category 4 

hurricane with sustained winds of 130 miles per hour. Accordingly, PEF initiated its 

Transmission Department Storm Plan on September 13,2004. PEF further retained 

outside transmission crews and mobilized its own resources in anticipation of the 

impact of the storm on its transmission system. This included providing for lodging 

and meals for the crews, as well as mobilizing the logistics forces to back up the 

crews with their ongoing needs to respond to the storm, including lining up necessary 

material and equipment. 

PEF did experience some minor damage to its transmission system and 

customer outages but PEF was able to quickly respond and correct any damage. No 23 
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substations were knocked out and distribution was able to restore all power to 

customers who lost service in two days. Crews, equipment vendors, and material 

suppliers that were no longer needed once the impact from the storm was known were 

released immediately from their prior commitments. The restoration costs directly 

attributable to transmission as a result of Hurricane Ivan are $0.9 million. 

VIII. HURRICANE JEANNE 

8 Q. 

9 

What was the impact of Hurricane Jeanne, the fourth hurricane to strike PEF’s 

service territory, on PEF’s transmission system? 

Hurricane Jeanne made landfall near Stuart, Florida on September 25,2004 as a 

category 3 hurricane with 120 miles per hour winds. It also had a widespread impact 

on PEF’s transmission system as it proceeded across Florida through PEF’s service 
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territory before exiting the state. The Company had 853 miles of transmission lines 

and 86 substations knocked out of service by the hurricane and 75 transmission 

structures were damaged. Storm damage to PEF’s transmission system was spread 

out over the entire transmission grid. A map showing the path of Hurricane Jeanne 

across OUT transmission system in our service territory is included as Exhibit - (SSR- 

5) to my testimony. 

How did the Company respond to Hurricane Jeanne? 

The Company implemented its Transmission Department Storm Plan for Hurricane 

Jeanne on September 22,2004 and followed the same restoration strategy it had 

followed for the prior hurricanes. As a result of the Company’s restoration efforts, 3 1 

19 
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u 1 of the 86 de-energized substations were re-energized the day the hurricane struck and 

over eighty were re-energized two days later. The remaining de-energized 

substations were restored the next day, just three days after the storm. Again, the 

Company’s restoration efforts overtook its ETRs before they were firmly established 

for many substations. Overall, we restored 95% of the substations prior to the 

established ETR. Nearly 77% were restored during the day of the storrn and the 
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7 following day. All substations capable of receiving service were restored in three 

days. 
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The restoration costs directly attributable to transmission as a result of 

Hurricane Jeanne are $13.3 million. 
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IX. STORM SUMMARY 

Can you provide us with an overview of the Company’s logistical efforts and 

resources during the course of this extraordinary hurricane season? 

Yes. During Hurricanes Charley, Frances, and Jeanne, we had over 350 transmission 

linemen and 250 tree trimming personnel working on storm restoration. These 

individuals were supported by 65 logistics personnel who saw to it that they had the 

equipment, material, and tools they needed to do the work and coordinated their 

travel, lodging, and meals. During these hurricanes we also used 11 cranes, 8 

helicopters, 2 sky cranes, 9 track digger derricks, 4 marsh masters, 36 light towers, 16 

water trucks, 6 tractors, 33 lull type forklifts, 13 backhoes, 2 dump trucks, 3 

bulldozers, 38 generators, 6 fuel tanker trucks, and the crews to operate them. 
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Additional rental equipment was secured as needed during the course of the 

storms, including van trailers and office trailers, air compressors, among other items. 

This was in addition to the Company’s pool equipment and material that was brought 

to the staging areas for use in the storm restoration work. For example, four pool 

tankers and two North Carolina tankers were used to transport fuel from the staging 

areas to trucks and other equipment throughout the system. The Company also used 

outside contractors to escort poles to job sites and to haul material and equipment 

from the Company’s warehouse to the staging areas and to jobsites. 

Over 900 transmission poles were replaced during the storm restoration work 

for Hurricanes Charley, Frances, and Jeanne. The Company used 23,000 bolts, 

10,000 ground rods, 21,000 insulators, and 4,000 connectors on the transmission 

system alone to respond to the storm damage. Also, the Company restored 2,684 

miles of damaged transmission lines and restored 274 substations to service. 

How does the Company determine the labor, material, and equipment needed to 

respond to storm damage to the transmission system? 

Before the hurricane leaves PEF’s service territory, PEF begins its damage 

assessment by using helicopters and vehicles to review every mile of transmission 

line potentially impacted by the storm. The damage assessment team records the 

storm damage they observed and that information is passed on to the coordinators of 

the line and tree trimming crews who will actually do the restoration work. 

Depending on the extent of storm damage that was observed and recorded, PEF’s 

field work coordinators will determine the number of crews and the equipment and 
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material they will need. Only the number of crews needed will be retained for storm 

restoration work. PEF has eight (8) transmission line crews and will apply these 

resources before resorting to outside contractors and transmission crews from other 

utilities. Logistics support obtains and arranges for the material and equipment to be 

supplied to the lines crews where it is needed, 

When the line crews go into the field to perform restoration work, PEF crew 

members record the work done to repair the storm damage to an accounting number 

assigned to the particular storm. When restoration requires that structures be 

replaced, work estimates are developed that include the location of the work, the 

number of poles or other transmission structures replaced, and the number and types 

of other material used in the work. They are also provided a certain number of 

“storm credit cards” to use for certain storm-related expenses only and charges to 

those cards are linked to the storm account numbers. The storm account numbers and 

estimates enable the Company to know what storm damage work was done, by 

whom, and what material was used. 

As actual invoices, work estimates, receipts, and other expense documents are 

collected, cost analysts are assigned by the Company to review them to ensure that all 

storm charges to the s tom accounts qualify as storm costs or are otherwise 

appropriately charged to the storm account. The costs analysts are not part of the 

storm restoration effort or the Transmission Department. Any charges that do not 

qualify as storm costs are removed from the storm account. 
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How would you characterize the Company’s implementation of its Transmission 

Department Storm Plan during the 2004 hurricane season? 

The 2004 hurricane season was unprecedented. Never before have we had four major 

hurricanes strike our service territory in a single year let alone four hurricanes in a 

span of about six weeks. To illustrate this, I have included as Exhibit - (SSR-6) to 

my testimony a composite map of the paths of the hour hurricanes across PEF’s 

transmission system, and I have included as Exhibit - (SSR-7) to my testimony a 

composite of pictures of the storm damage our transmission system incurred. Under 

those circumstances, and given the severe damage caused by the hurricanes; in 

particular Hurricane Charley, the Transmission Department performed well, 

implementing its Transmission Department Storm Plan and meeting or exceeding the 

goals it set for itself during the storm restoration efforts. Many customers never lost 

service at all as the Company was able to maintain the stability and integrity of its 

transmission grid in the face of all four storms. There were, of course, lessons 

learned during the course of the early hurricanes. But these lessons only improved 

the Company’s Plan in the later hurricanes as they were incorporated into the Plan for 

the later storms. 

For example, we quickly learned during Hurricane Charley that pole delivery 

from a centralized location created bottlenecks that affected productivity. We moved 

to decentralize pole delivery and began flying more transmission structures to the job 

sites by air cranes. This proved to be both effective and efficient as it increased 

restoration productivity so we made this delivery process a part of the plan for the 

following storms. The Company’s Transmission Department Storm Plan proved to 
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be an effective plan, then, guiding the expeditious and efficient restoration of the 

transmission system during and following each of the hurricanes. An illustration of 

what the Company was dealing with is contained in Exhibit - (SSR-6) to my 

testimony, which is a map of the composite paths of the four hurricanes on PEF’s 

transmission system. 

Q. 

A. Yes. 

Does this conclude your testimony? 
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3Y MR. WALLS: 

Q Ms. Rogers, do you have a summary of your testimony? 

A I do. 

Q Will you provide that to the Commission at this time? 

A Yes, I will. My name is Sarah Rogers, and I am 

?mployed by Progress Energy Carolina. I am the Vice President 

3f Transmission for Progress Energy Carolina, Inc. I am also 

the Transmission System Coordinator for the company's 

transmission system in the event of a severe storm or other 

disaster. 

The goal of our transmission storm plan is to enable 

us to quickly assess damage on the transmission system, to 

determine the manpower and other requirements needed to correct 

this damage, and to initiate the appropriate restoration 

process. To achieve this goal, our storm plan is divided into 

phases for storm preparation and response that allows us to 

begin to prepare for hurricanes up to 120 hours before a 

hurricane strikes and to track and assess the damage as the 

storm passes through our service territory. The plan enables 

us to quickly prioritize restoration work and begin repair 

efforts to efficiently and safely restore electric service. 

We implemented our storm plan four times for 

Hurricanes Charley, Frances, Ivan, and Jeanne in 2004. These 

hurricanes caused widespread outages as severe winds knocked 

hundreds of miles of transmission lines and hundreds of 
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substations out of service over the course of four hurricanes. 

The damage to our transmission lines and equipment was also 

severe, requiring us to engage and manage massive numbers of 

line personnel and tree personnel, vehicles, equipment and 

materials in this restoration effort. 

As an overview, 700 miles of transmission line and 83 

substations were out of service, and 630 transmission 

structures were knocked down or damaged during Hurricane 

Charley. 1,131 miles of transmission lines and 105 substations 

were out of service, and we had to replace or repair 211 

transmission structures during Hurricane Frances. And, 

finally, we had 853 miles of transmission lines and 86 

substations out of service with 75 damaged structures during 

Hurricane Jeanne. Despite these extraordinary conditions, we 

dere able to restore lines and substations to service in record 

time often beating our own internal restoration goals. 

After we restore service, however, we must go back 

2nd repair damage caused by the hurricanes that we bypassed in 

3ur efforts to restore power as quickly as possible. The goal 

3f this work is to put the transmission system back in the 

zondition that it was prior to the hurricanes. We expect to 

zomplete this work by the end of the second quarter of this 

year. 

We believe our storm plan proved to be an effective 

m d  efficient tool to restore customer service as quickly as 
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iossible during this unprecedented hurricane season. We are 

i l s o  very proud of the response of our employees in the 

:ransmission area for their hard work in making our storm plan 

vork during these four hurricanes. That concludes my summary. 

MR. WALLS: At this time we would tender Ms. Rogers 

Eor cross-examination. 

CHAIRMAN BAEZ: Thank you, Mr. Walls. 

Ms. Christensen. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

3Y MS. CHRISTENSEN: 

Q Good afternoon, Ms. Rogers. As Vice-president of 

rransmission, part of your job requirement is the coordination 

if storm recovery for the transmission system, is that correct? 

A That is correct, yes. 

Q Am I correct in understanding that your transmission 

lepartment storm plan is used mainly for hurricanes? 

A That would not be correct. It is also used for ice 

storms. It covers both the Carolinas and Florida. 

Q Okay. But that would not cover your average 

zhunderstorm type of activity? 

A No, it would not. 

Q So during thunderstorms 

substations or transmission lines 

where you may have damage to 

you would not implement that 

storm plan? 

A That is correct. 
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Q When you implement the storm plan prior to the 

hurricane, the plan consists of four phases, am I correct? 

A I believe so. 

Q And these four phases are pre-season activities, 

pre-storm activities, damage assessment and repair, and 

'recovery followup activities, am I correct? 
I 

A That is correct, yes. 

Q And as part of your storm plan, would you agree that 
I 

I 

I A Yes, it is. 

levery year you engage in pre-season activities? 

I Q And since these pre-season activities occur on a 

yearly basis, am I correct that these costs associated with the 

Ipre-season activities are included in you figuring the annual 
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budget ? 

A That is correct, yes. 

Q And so the cost associated with the pre-season 

activities are not charged to the storm accounts, am I correct? 

A That is correct, yes. 

Q When you initiate the pre-storm activities, is that 

when you begin to charge to the storm accounts? 

A I am going to give you a similar answer to Mr. 

McDonald, it really depends upon the storm. I believe in 

Charley, the storm numbers were activated during the storm, but 

I think subsequently for Frances, Jeanne, and Ivan they were 

initiated prior to the actual storm hitting in the 2004 season. 
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Q Once you start charging costs to the storm accounts, 

weren't portions of your salary and your staff's salary charged 

to the storm accounts, those portions for persons working on 

hurricane related items? 

A If we were working directly on the hurricane they 

were charged to the hurricane charge numbers. 

Q Am I correct that immediately after the hurricanes 

you had outside crews assigned to transmission and Progress 

crews assigned to transmission? 

A That is correct, yes. 

Q And were these crews working 16-hour days immediately 

after the hurricanes? 

A Yes, they were. 

Q And were they working seven days a week? 

A In most cases, yes. We tried to provide them with a 

rest day every seven days or so. 

Q If you know, how many days or months after the 

hurricanes did your workers revert back to ten hour days, six 

clays per week? 

A Did they revert back to seven - -  

Q To ten hour days six days a week. When was the first 

scale back for hours and days that the crews were working? 

A For the most part they still are working those hours 

in Florida to do the catch-up work and also to finish the 

restoration work. 
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Q 

Q So which hours are they still currently working? 

A Well, they work ten hour days and they are working 

live to six days a week. 

Okay. And do you know what percentage of your work 

Force is on that type of schedule? 

A I do not know the exact percentage, but the majority. 

Q Okay. Is that for the line crews? 

A Yes, it is. 

Q Am I correct that your normal budget includes 

%ssumptions for some percentage of overtime? 

A Yes, it does. 

Q And that percentage of overtime includes some 

Ivertime for outside crews who are normally contracted with 

?rogress for normal operations? 

A No, it does not. Our contract crews are bid by job, 

50 whether the contractor chooses to pay them overtime or not 

is up to them, but we pay one flat fee for the job. 

Q Okay. Returning to Progress crews, is the percentage 

>f normally budgeted overtime somewhere in the range of 15 to 

10 percent? 

A No, it is not. 

Q If you know, what is that percentage? 

A It is less than 10 percent. It is between 5 and 10. 

Q Are you familiar - -  well, at the end of your 

zestimony you included some pictures of downed power poles, is 
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:hat correct? 

A That is correct. 

Q And Mr. Lyash had shown some pictures of wooden 

I was not at the service hearings that you are 

;ransmission poles that were blown down at the ground level 

luring the service hearings. Are you familiar with those 

?ictures? 

A 

referring to. 

Q Let me ask you, are you familiar with - -  I mean, I 

=an show you copies of those pictures. They were attached to 

Jlr. McDonald's testimony, Exhibit 8. Have you taken a look at 

:hose pictures? 

A I have not. 

Q Well, let me ask you this, are you familiar with 

wooden poles? 

A I am, yes. 

Q Let me ask you about wooden poles, then. Am I 

zorrect that the greatest stress on a wooden pole in relation 

to the ground is approximately a third of the way up? 

A An unloaded pole with no conductors on it, that would 

De a true answer, yes. 

Q Okay. Now, let me ask you would you agree that for a 

pole in good condition, even with the equipment on it, that the 

nost likely place you would see damage due to wind sheer is a 

third of the way up from the ground? 
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I would not agree with that, no. 

And that is because? 

A Because a fully loaded pole has a different torque 

2rm than an unloaded pole. 

ionductors and insulators is going to behave differently 

lepending upon the wind sheer. 

So a fully loaded pole with 

Q 

A 

Q 

Where would you expect that to break most often? 

I'm not able to answer that question. 

Is it correct that termites tend to attack wooden 

)ales at the first foot below the surface of the ground? 

A I don't know the answer to that. 

Q If the pole is buried 15 feet into the ground, is it 

ikely that when that pole is knocked over that it will be 

nocked over flat at the ground level? 

A 

Q 

It depend on what knocks it over. 

If it was knocked over due to wind or other type of 

amage, is that likely? 

A It is likely that it will break at ground level, that 

s correct, but it is just as likely it will break above ground 

eve1 . 

Q So you are unable to exactly predict where you would 

?e the most damage on the poles? 

A That is correct. 

MS. CHRISTENSEN: No further questions. 

CHAIRMAN BAEZ: Mr. McWhirter. 
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CROSS EXAMINATION 

3Y MR. MCWHIRTER: 

Q Ms. Rogers, you received a Bachelor of Science in 

3lectrical Engineering from San Diego State University and a 

Yasters of Business Administration from Duke University? 

A That is correct. 

Q And I would presume from that you are well-grounded 

in accounting and statistics? 

A That is a subjective answer. It depends on relative 

degrees. 

Q You don't want to brag, do you? And you supervise 

the entire transmission system both in North Carolina and 

Florida? 

A And South Carolina. 

Q And South Carolina. And when the companies merged, 

did you replace somebody that had an equivalent function just 

for Florida? How did that work? 

A Prior to the merger, I was the Vice-president of 

rransmission for the Carolinas. After the merger, I moved to 

Florida as the vice-president of transmission Florida, and then 

nore recently I was named vice-president over both territories. 

Q And was a position eliminated when you undertook that 

responsibility? 

A The latest position? Yes, it was. 

Q On Page 2 of your testimony you talk about - -  on Line 
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13 your storm plan deals with pre-season activities, pre-storm 

activities, and recovery follow-up activities. Which of those 

activities is included in the cost for storm damage 

cost-recovery? 

A Pre-season storm activities - -  I'm sorry. What is 

included are pre-storm difficulties, damage assessment and 

repair, and recovery follow-up actions. 

Q So pre-season is not included, but the other two are? 

A That is correct. If we do pre-storm activities and 

the storm does not strike the service territory, then that 

activity doesn't get charged to a storm. So if we prepare for 

a hurricane that doesn't hit our territory, then we have to 

absorb those pre-storm activities. 

Q In your normal O&M budget as opposed to a storm 

budget ? 

A That is correct. 

A 

Q 

Q And then when a 

all the costs and you are 

That is correct 

1 would presume 

storm hits, the storm budget picks up 

relieved of your normal costs? 

in anticipation of storms you have 

contractors that you can readily call upon to supplement your 

regular crews, is that correct? 

A That is correct, yes. 

Q And are you the person responsible for negotiating 

those contracts? 
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A No, I'm not. 

Q Do you have any knowledge of the basic terms of those 

zontracts? 

A I have basic knowledge of those basic terms. 

Q Do you have contracts between Progress Energy of 

Florida and Progress Energy of Carolina for sending Carolina 

zrews to Florida? 

A We do not have contracts in place. 

Q But I presume your first tier of relief when you need 

2dditional help would be to bring them to Florida from North 

Zarolina? 

A Our first tier of relief is to use the contractors 

that are currently on our system that are typically performing 

ionstruction activities, then we typically ask those 

iontractors if they can make available more personnel, then we 

30 to our sister utility in the Carolinas, and then we go 

mtside of our system. 

Q Are the contracts when they are doing storm work, do 

they have different payment terms for storm work than they have 

€or regular construction work? 

A When you say they, do you mean the contractors? 

Q The contractors, yes? 

A No, they do not. 

Q So if you had a contractor that was doing regular 

ionstruction work and that same contractor was doing storm 
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work, the pric,es paid would be the same? 

A Essentially. A lot of our contract jobs are bid as a 

lump sum, but, they have published what their hourly rates are, 

so we pay them their hourly rates for the storm duty. 

Q And you don't negotiate those contracts, but you are 

essentially familiar with their terms? 

A Correct. 

Q Now, with respect to the people that come down from 

Carolina, how is that handled financially? 

A We cover their hourly wages, their food, their 

vehicle costs, their lodging. 

Q And then what happens up in Carolina with respect to 

the money they would have been paid by the Carolina affiliate? 

How does it book those costs? Does it reduce its normal O&M 

cost or - -  

A No, it does not, because much like ourselves, they 

have work that they have to make up when they go back. So they 

are either bringing in off-system contractors to supplement the 

work for us or they are working extended hours to make up. 

Q Are those people paid by the Carolina utility or are 

they paid by the Florida affiliate? 

A They are paid by the Carolina utility. 

Q And so the Florida utility sends the money to the 

affiliate in Carolina and it handles arrangements however it 

has to with its employees? 
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A That is correct. 

Q And then is the opposite true, when Carolina people 

come down to Florida - -  strike that one. When Florida people 

30 up to Carolina, that is the opposite, you continue to pay 

their standard salaries plus their standard overhead from 

Florida rather than Carolina, right? 

A Actually that has never happened in the four years I 

have been down here, so I'm not exactly sure. 

Q Florida has never sent crews to Carolina? 

A In the transmission department we have never sent 

crews to the Carolinas. They have never had sufficient damage 

to require them. 

Q I thought you had bad storms up in Carolina, but you 

don't need people from Florida, huh? 

A 

Q 

A 

On the distribution side that has happened. 

Do you know how those prices are handled? 

I do not. 

Q And your total cost that you are seeking in storm 

recovery in this case is $ 6 0  million for the four storms. Are 

you the one that framed that number, or did it come from your 

accounting department? 

A It came from the accounting folks. 

Q And did you independently verify the numbers or did 

you deal with the numbers at all? 

A Not personally, no. 
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Q Now, go to Page 16 of your testimony, and I will read 

beginning at Line 6. It says - -  you're talking about things 

that happened when there is a storm, and the line is broken or 

knocked down. It says, "This shield wire protects the main 

conductor from direct lightning strikes, but is not essential." 

So you don't do anything to that. And where the shield wire 

was broken or knocked down, it was cut down completely during 

restoration work and the main conductor was restored or 

replaced. Tell me what is going on there, 1 don't really 

understand that. 

A What we are doing is we are sacrificing restoring the 

system to its normal condition for speed, so it is quicker to 

go ahead and string the conductors that carry the electricity 

and energize the line and go back later to put the protective 

shield wire back on to protect the system during the lightning 

season. 

Q And then you go back and do your permanent 

replacement? 

A That is correct. 

Q Is anything done - -  and you may not know this. Is 

anything done with respect to the way that the value that that 

line and conductor - -  and I will call it transmission pole, but 

I know that is wrong. But is there anything that happens in 

the books of the company from your knowledge, the accounting 

function that changes the way that equipment appears on the 
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:ompany's books? In other words, is it capitalized as opposed 

.o just disregard those costs for capital purposes? 

A I don't know the answer to that. 

Q Do you have any knowledge from your engineering 

lackground and from your accounting background, when you finish 

'our restoration work, what percentage of that work would 

iormally be booked to capital work as opposed to normal O&M 

:osts, or extraordinary O&M costs? 

A I do not know the answer to that. 

(Transcript continues in sequence with Volume 3 . )  
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